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We look forward to continuing to provide exceptional customer service [
in Residential / Commercial Lawn Mowing * Ground Maintenance
* Light Excavation * Tree Removal & Trimming ¢ Brush Hogging
* York Raking ¢« Snow Removal ¢ Septic Systems
* Stamped Concrete sidewalks, patios, and more.

Check us out
Facebook.com/
crewellspropertycare
or give us a call at

518-231-1223

ESPERANCE
LP GAS, INC.

51 8-875-9116

Independenily Owned
24 HR SERVICE

Appliance Sales and Service
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LIFE'S TOO SHORT TO MISS OUT.

Stay on top of concerts, festivals, and local happenings with
Schoharie County’s #1 event calendar.

\l [
= qﬁ Waywa‘d Lane Brewing
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SCHOHARIE COUNTY

HISTORY OF SCHOHARIE COUNTY

In Schoharie County, history comes to life in 1712, the first
Europeans arrived in the Schoharie Valley of New York.
Palatine German refugees, believing they had been granted
lands here by Queen Anne, settled in seven villages called
“dorfs”. Dutch American settlers also migrated from nearby
Schenectady, purchasing land from the Indians. At first the
two groups clashed. But, by the late 1700s, they were living
harmoniously.

When the Revolutionary War came to the Valley, the people
found themselves on a frontier exposed to raids by the
Mohawk Iroquois Indians allied with the British. In 1777, a
force of Loyalist Americans and Indians tried to enforce the
King’s authority, even convincing tavern owner Captain
George Mann of the local militia to “turn his coat”. This was
during British General Burgoyne’s campaign to drive through
New York from Canada. A troop of Continental dragoons,
detached from the American forces at Albany, made the U.S.
Army’s first cavalry charge — complete with bugle horn —
defeating the Loyalists and Indians at the Battle of the
Flockey.

The Upper, Middle and Lower Forts were established along
the Schoharie Creek to provide refuge in the event of another
raid. These were made by enclosing a sturdy building within a
wooden wall or stockade. The Lower (Stone) Fort was built in
1777 around the Dutch Reformed stone church, constructed in

1772 by the congregation of Foxesdorf, now part of
Schoharie.

In October of 1780, a major raid led by Sir john Johnson
and the Mohawk Chief Joseph Brant swept through the valley.
At this time, farmers in the Schoharie Valley were supplying
huge amounts of grain to Gen. George Washington’s Army,
earning for it the nickname of “The Breadbasket of the
American Revolution.”

While the people took shelter in the forts, the raiders laid
waste to the valley, burning houses, barns and crops. Middle
Fort might have been surrendered if not for legendary rifle-
man Timothy Murphy, already a hero of the Battle of
Saratoga. He fired on the British negotiating party in defiance
of orders, helping to convince Sir John to move on. The
raiders then advanced to the Lower (Stone) Fort and bom-
barded it with their single cannon.

After the war, the forts were dismantled and farming again
became the dominant occupation in the Schoharie Valley, with
the cultivation of wheat, flax, corn and hops occupying most
people. Schoharie County was formed in 1795 and local gov-
ernment began to grow in importance with the arrival of New
Englanders and immigrants.

On the evening in 1865 when President Abraham Lincoln
was shot at Ford’s Theatre in Washington, D.C., Corporal
James Tanner — a disabled Army Stenographer from
Schoharie County — was called to record the last moments of
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SHED SALES

114 Aker Drive, Cobleskill, NY
518-231-6084 - empireshedsales.com

Moving to 5
New Location

Soon!
349 Mineraj Springs Rq.
Cobleskii
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7\ Local routes throughout Schoharie County
_. ;’ J I~ / : Y r Commuter service to Albany
-/_ e r . J Demand Response Service to Albany and Cooperstown

— - P Schoharie County
%2}%— Public Transportation
518-234-0952

- = = A o [ ]
Non-Emergency Medical Transportation Taxi Service & “(i />
CALL MEDICAL ANSWERING SERVICES at 1-855-852-3290 = P) ('\
N2 Hn S

ASK FOR SCHOHARIE COUNTY PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION

DOT INSPECTED SEDANS TIMELY SERVICE COURTEOUS DRIVERS
Schoharie County’s Mobility Manager helps people -
find solutions for their transportation needs. The onn eCtlng
Mobility Manager offers travel training and Qur i
educational sessions for individuals, groups and OoOIrnrnuryi ty

organizations. If you have a mobility challenge, or Schoharie Cowntyy Mobilityy Managencemnt
want more information about transportation options

in Schoharie County, please call our Mobility 5 1 8 - 2 3 4 - 09 5 2
Manager, Christine Kraemer.

Blenheim-Gilboa Visitors Center & Lansing Manor

Visit us year-round for:

* FREE and FUN family events

* School field trips and complimentary community
event spaces

* Guided tours of historic Lansing Manor

* Educational and interactive science exhibits

2025 EVENTS
April 5 Eggstravaganza
April 26 Earth Rocks!
June 1 Teddy Bear Picnic
June 14-15 Pathways Through History
July 12 Antigue Auto Show
July 21-25 Intro to Robotics Pre-registration required
Aug. 18-22 SeaPerch Pre-registration required
Aug. 23 Touch-A-Truck
Sept. 27 Wildlife Festival
October Energy Awareness Month
Oct. 11-13 Pathways Through History
Oct, 18 Spooktacular
Now. 2, 9,16, 23 STEM Sundays
December Festival of Trees
Dec. 12 Holly Jolly Party

Blenheim-Gilboa Power Project

© 1378 State Route 30, North Blenheim NY 7 NEW

@ 800-724-0309 k! YORK NY PO\N-'GI'

@ VisitBGaNYPA.gov ' Authority
i 9 Y.oA] SCAN FOR INFO ;

2025 SCHOHARIE VALLEY COMMUNITY DIRECTORY ¢ PAGE 5



SCHOHARIE COUNTY

the President’s life. 301 Washington Avenue, Albany, NY 12206
With peace, Americans enjoyed the products of the industri- e 518-463-1211

al Revolution at.home ar}d on the farm. D(.)g' treadmills pow- NYS COMMISSION FOR THE BLIND
ered early machines the increased productivity as the 19th

century proeressed Albany District Office
o ip. gc o drive from st about 52 Washington St., Room 201 South Bldg.
cnohanie -ounty 1S an easy Grive Irom Just about any- Rensselaer, NY 12144 ...........ocooeeecccereerrrsrerr 866-871-3000

where. While readily accessible from the interstates, visitors
often come via one of the many other scenic routes. NY STATE POWER AUTHORITY

BLENHEIM-GILBOA VISITORS CENTER
WWW.Nypa.gov

North Blenheim.......ccocceeviiriiinienieiniiiiceees 800-724-0309
ANIMAL SHELTER OF SCHOHARIE VALLEY
NY STATE POLICE
........................................................................ 518-296-8390 .
COobIESKIll ..o 518-630-1700
CATHOLIC CHARITIES OF SCHOHARIE CO.
y NYS D.E.C
www.charitiesccdos.org
489 West Main St., Cobleskill .......cccccervveernnne. 518-234-3581 www.dec.ny.gov
General Info .....ooooviiiiiinii 518-357-2234
COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.
WWW.SCCAPINC.OLE ..o 518-234-2568 SCHOHARIE CO. CHAMBER_ OF COMMERCE
Misson Statement: The Schoharie County Chamber of
CORNELL COOPERATIVE EXT. Commerce is an organization of business people and other
OF SCHOHARIE CO. ........ccecovverrerrareenen. 518-234-4303 leaders working together to advance the general welfare and
LITERACY VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOHARIE CO prosperity of our community through our endeavors with
518-23 4.1-2576 business, including agriculture, education, government and
tourism.
NORTHEASTERN ASSOCIATION OF THE BLIND 256 Main St., Schoharie, NY ......ccccccecvvvninnene 518-295-8824
AT ALBANY (NABA)
https://nabavision.org
INDEX Did You Miss Out?
Schoharie County.........ccceceeinineneincnenienne. 4-8
BIOOME......cvoniioiineireeies i 8-9 ...on listing your organization
ODICSKI.c.viiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinin e -
; 2025 COMMUNITY DIRECTORY?
Conesville.......occoureineineincinccccecee 16
Duanesburg........cccoeveevineinineceeee, 17 We make every effort to include a complete list of
Esperance..........ccoceveveninienienininescen 17-18 businesses, services, organizations, churches,
Fultonham/West Fulton 19 schools, local governments and activities in your
Gilboa....... oo 19_20 area... but with changes and additions every year,
----------------------------------------------------------- it!s poSSibIe that a Iisting of your Organization Or
Jefferson ............................................................ 21 activity did not appear in the 2025 Community
Mlddleburgh ................................................ 22-24 Directory.
North Blenheim..........eeveeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaaaennn, 24-25 If that’s the case, let’s make sure we have the
Richmondville........ccoocovviiviiiiiiiiiiiiiiene 25-26 proper listing of your organization or activity included
Schoharie.........cccocevivininiieiieeeee, 27-29 in the 2026 Community Directory for your area,
Seward 30 email your information by January 3, 2026 to:
Sharon SPrings..........c.eeeeereerevreveiseisriseinnns 31-32 info@myshopperonline.com
?Kl]lmmli ......................................................... 32';; Subiect line: 2026 Community Directory
OFCESICT ..ttt
WIIht..ceiiiiie 34
Surrounding Area........coccevevevererieneniennene. 35-40 5
Professional LiStings.........ccccceevevveiriinnennne 41-43 thpEl'
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S cﬁoﬁane County

Building stronger. healthier communities and empowering families that experience
economic and social rlnllengres through strategic partnerships. education, services and compassion.

Energy Services Healthy Families/ WIC Family Support & ConimunibySenices
SR Resource Center i ) _
Services to help ‘Supplemental Nutrition s _ Assistance with utilities,
income-eligible county Assistance Program for Women, Family Peer Advocates housing, and other basic needs
residents save on fug! and Infants, and Children (WIC) Fam'il_y Team Conferences Food Pty
energy consumption. Breastfeeding support Supervised Visitation od Pantry
Furnace repair and carbon and education Skill Building HEAP
‘monoxide detection Nutrition education and Child and Adult Care Food Program Employment Services
Air exchange reports for (Ehoets Sle SliertcPs TG Community resources
new home builds per code Mothers Milk Depot of Free Child Care Referral Services  andadvocacy
' Schoharie County Creative Connections for Youth

sctie) High Energy Bills?

WEATHERIZATION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

A Division of NYSHCR

Want to stay warm in the winter and cool in the summer?

FREE Weatherization Services are available
for eligible Home Owners and Renters

Based on the Energy Audit, listed below are measures we
may be able to address and/or test:

» Air infiltration/exfiltration 5 A goiliig DHCR income guidelines thru 11/30/2025 are:
s i uiage * Refrigerator testing and/or replacement Household Size:  Geoss Mouthly Income
) Conc!uctwe l}eat loss » Check and/or replace water heater : §3422
+ Heating appliance : 2 $4,345
o T EET » Install LED bulbs, pipe wrap, water heater 3 $5,367

* Heating distribution '
« Health and safatv wrap, faucet aerators and shower heads 4 $6,390

Tl BNCHRONY mares + Window and door replacement for mobile 5 $7.412
* Indoor air quality tests A 6 $8,434
. Ventlla.llon + Window air conditioners for customers ; :g";ig
* Insulation with a medical need i

795 East Main Street, Suite, 5, Cobleskill, NY 12043 | www.sccapinc.org | 518-234-2568 | admin@sccapinc.org

2025 SCHOHARIE VALLEY COMMUNITY DIRECTORY ¢ PAGE 7



SCHOHARIE COUNTY BROOME

SCHOHARIE CO. INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
........................................................................ 518-234-7604

SCHOHARIE CO. OFFICES
County Office Building

284 Main St., Schoharie .............ccoeevvveeieeinnn. 518-295-8316
SCHOHARE CO. SHERIFF

Schoharie, NY .....ccooviiiiiiiiiiiieeeee e, 518-295-8114
SCHOHARIE CO. SOIL
& WATER CONSERVATION .........cc...ccoe..... 518-823-4535

SCHOHARIE COUNTY HOME OF ONGOING
LEARNING ( S.C.H.O.0.L.)

Spring Semester: March- June

Fall Semester: September - November

Info at: www.cobyschool.com and in local libraries

CHARLOTTEVILLE SCHOOLHOUSE
641 Charlotte Valley Road, Charlotteville, NY 12036
The Charlotteville Schoolhouse Restoration Committee, a
501(c)(3) organization of member volunteers, posts informa-
tion and events on Facebook @charlottevilleschoolhouse.
Our goal is to restore the Schoolhouse Bell to its original
location with our many fundraisers throughout the year.
For available Schoolhouse rental opportunities and further
information please email CSRC641@gmail.com
or 607-397-9180

SCHOHARIE COUNTY

AMATEUR RADIO ASSOCIATION
Email:wa2zwm.scara@ gmail.com
website: schoharieamateurradio.org
P.O. Box 394, Warnerville, NY 12187

SCHOHARIE VALLEY PIECEMAKERS (SVP)
Meet 2nd Tuesdays of the month from Sept. - June at
St. Mark's Church hall, Middleburgh, NY from 1 - 3 pm
Info at: www.schoharievalleypiecemakers.com
and on facebook

THE GAS UP
The Gas Up is held annually on the 2nd & 3rd weekends of
June at 106 Murphy Road, Gallupville. An exposition of
antique & vintage vehicles, tools, and machinery. Our organi-
zation holds monthly meetings. Our volunteers maintain and
improve our property (or say land and buildings) including
the ice cream house, the steam powered sawmill, various
antique equipment and other items.
Visit our website at https://www.thegasup.org/,
facebook.com/gasup
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HISTORY OF BROOME

The town of Broome was established March 17, 1797 as one
of the six original towns formed in Schoharie County.

First known as Bristol, its name was changed to Broome on
April 6, 1808, in honor of the Lieutenant Governor Joberner
John Broome, who was much admired in this portion of the
State for his sterling honesty, strict integrity and high political
ability.

Broome lies on the east border of the county, south of the
center. The surface is hilly upland, broken by deep ravines.
The Catskill Creek starts in the north part at Vlaie in
Franklinton and several branches of the Schoharie Creek
drain the north and west portions.

Catskill Creek rises in the northern part of the town, flows
southeastward, through Albany County, and empties into the
Hudson.

Broome’s history is deeply intertwined with the neighboring
towns of Conesville, Gilboa and Middleburgh. The original
town was very large and included over half the present towns
of Gilboa and Conesville. The hub was Broome Center,
which is located in the present town of Gilboa. The first town
meeting was held at the house of Peter Richtmyer located in
the present day town of Conesville.

In 1836, a part of Broome was split off and combined with
parts of Durham to form Conesville. In 1848, another split
was made to form Gilboa. The town once again increased its
size by annexing sections of Middleburgh in 1849.

In 1860, Broome was a thriving community with a popula-
tion of 2,182. Many farms dotted the hillsides and businesses
abounded in the four major settlements of Livingstonville,
Hauverville, Franklinton and Bates (originally called
Smithton).

The hamlet of Livingstonville had a hotel, two churches,
two stores, a post office, school, shoe shop, two blacksmith
shops, grist mill, sash and blind factory, as well as two doc-
tors, a lawyer, and an undertaker.

Franklinton had a church, school, store and post office,
wagon making shop, gristmill and two blacksmith shops.

Bates had a church, school, sawmill, store and blacksmith
shop.

Hauverville had a church, school, store, blacksmith shop,
cider mill, tannery, wagon shop, sawmill and shingle factory.
It also had a quarry, which supplied stones for the Capitol
building in Albany.

By 1980, population had declined to 761. Census figures
for 1990 showed a reverse in this decline; population was
926, an increase of 21% over the previous ten years.

Over the years, many old non-working farms were divided
into parcels and sold for summer homes and hunting camps.
Of the approximately 29,000 acres of land in the town,
approximately 5,500 acres are state owned and approximately
three-fourths of the remaining property is owned by non-resi-
dents.



COBLESKILL REGIONAL HOSPITAL
178 Grandview Drive
Cobleskill, NY 12043 ......coooviieieeeeieeeeeeeens 518-254-3456

LIVINGSTONVILLE VOL. FIRE DEPT.
453 State Hwy. 145, Middleburgh ................ 518-827-5820

POST OFFICE
300 Main St., Middleburgh, 12122 ................ 518-827-5210

SCHOHARIE COUNTY PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
114 Rock Rd., Cobleskill, NY 12043 ........... 518-234-0952

MIDDLEBURGH CENTRAL SCHOOL
middleburghcsd.org
Elementary, 245 Main St., Middleburgh.......... 518-827-3600
Jr.-Sr. High, 291 Main St., Middleburgh ........ 518-827-3600

SCHOHARIE COUNTY OFFICE FOR THE AGING
113 Park Place
Schoharie, NY 12157 .ooovvveiiieeeieeeeeeeee. 518-295-2001

CARLISLE

THE HISTORY OF CARLISLE

The first land cleared in the town was in 1760. These farms
were a part of “New Dorlach” patent, granted in 1730, (now
called the Borst patent) but not surveyed until the year 1753,
by Isaac Vroman and re-surveyed in 1797 by Johannes
Lawyer. The original grant contained forty-five lots of six
hundred acres each and nine of one hundred and three hun-
dred acres each.

At the commencement of the Revolutionary War, quite a
number of families could be found in this neighborhood.
Prominent families were the Karkers, Young, Brown, Fichter,
Borntheit, Kneiskern, Loucks and March or of late Monk.
The descendants of all those pioneers are still here but as
neighbors enjoy better feelings towards each other than their
ancestors did, who were divided in a political point of view as
Patriots and Tories.

Between the years 1795 and 1810, the town was filled by
immigrants from every part of the country, many coming
from Connecticut, Rhode Island and New Jersey, owing to the
idea gained during the war, of Schoharie being such a wheat
growing section. With but very few exceptions, the descen-
dants of the first settlers of the town remain upon their ances-
tral homes.

Carlisle formed in 1807 from Cobleskill and Sharon, and
was named by Mrs. John Sweetman, an established lady, after
Carlisle Pierce, a prominent townsman. One hundred twenty-
three acres were laid out in village lots of one-half acre each,

* CABINETS

* SINKS & FAUCETS
* COUNTERTOPS

* FLOORING

*TILE

Kitchen Dream
Shop!

Now Selling Cabinets

vour onesop COUNTERFITTERS LLC

2319 State Highway Route 20, Carlisle, NY
(518) 833-2740

Facebook@WarrenCounterfitters * Counterfittersandmore@gmail.com
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with three parallel streets running east and west, and some
north and south, where the village now stands. While
Livingston, the owner of the land, easily built a small city on
paper, few actual buyers came. They passed on with the cry
“Westward Ho!!”

The Carlisle Foundry was established in 1846, by Paige &
Woolson and the steam, saw and grist-mill, erected upon the
site of the “Cromwell stand,” by Nicholas Hanson, in 1875,
adds greatly to the business of the place.

Joseph Taylor settled in the year 1911 upon a farm that had
been occupied by a Hitchman family for several years. Taylor
kept a store and built a distillery and was a very energetic
business man. He purchased large quantities of flax-seed
which he shipped to Europe, besides other grains, which
proved successful speculations.

The Young, Loucks and Richtmeyer families now living
here are near descendants of the first settlers of the County.
The small hamlet, for many years called “Bradt’s Corners”
was changes to “Carlisle Center,” upon establishment of the
post office in 1871.

Note: The Town of Carlisle was formed March 31, 1802.

BASSETT HEALTHCARE MEDICAL CENTER
1 Atwell Rd., Cooperstown, NY ........ccccceueee. 607-547-3456

BASSETT HEALTHCARE /
COBLESKILL REGIONAL HOSPITAL
178 Grandview Dr,, Cobleskill, NY 12043....518-254-3456

TOWN CLERK/COLLECTOR/REGISTRAR
Town Hall Building
541 Crommie Rd, Carlisle, NY ................ 518-234-7080 x3

SCHOHARIE COUNTY PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
114 Rock Rd.
, Cobleskill, NY 12043 ....ccccoevveeeeieeeeeeenee. 518-234-0952

SCHOHARIE COUNTY OFFICE FOR THE AGING
113 Park Place, Schoharie, NY 12157 .......... 518-295-2001

COBLESKILL-RICHMONDVILLE CS
c-res.k12.ny.us
Radez Elementary

319 Main St., Richmondville .........c.ccocceeenee. 518-294-6621
Ryder Elementary

143 Golding Drive, Cobleskill ...........c..cc.c..... 518-234-2585
Golding Middle

193 Golding Drive, Cobleskill ............cecoeuneeee 518-234-8368
C-R High School

1353 Rte. 7, Richmondville ..........c..ccccceenee 518-234-3565
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COBLESKILL

HISTORY OF COBLESKILL

Cobleskill is said to be named for Jacob Kobel, a German
Palatine who migrated to the Schoharie Valley in 1713. Jacob
intended to build a mill near the spot where the creek the
Iroquois called Ots-ha-le-ga flowed into the Schoharie. He
emigrated to Pennsylvania instead in 1725 and the mill was
never built. The earliest use of the name “Cobus Kil” appears
on a 1728 map. Kil is an early Dutch word meaning stream
and Cobus was a common nickname for a man named Jacob.

Early in the year 1751 Jacob Borst, a German from
Schoharie, and Partners purchased 4,800 acres of land about
six miles upstream from the mouth of the Cobus Kil. It was
probably that same year that Johans Shafer of Ulster County
and his cousin Pieter purchased six hundred acres from Borst
and settled in what is now the east side of the village. Jacob
Borst settled in the valley at about the same time. Jacob's
farm was located in the vicinity of modern day Borst Noble
Road.

Borst and his partners managed to get title to nearly 18,000
acres in three separate land patents. The other two patents
were several miles north of Cobus Kil. In between lay a 4,800
acre patent granted to the Royal Governor's secretary, a young
man named Goldsbro Banyar. That parcel would come to be
known as "The Patent” and would not be settled for many
years.

Many more families arrived at the close of the French and
Indian War in 1760. There were soon three separate commu-
nities. New Turloch was several miles farther up the creek
(West Creek today) and New Rhinebeck a few miles north of
Cobus Kil. Banyar's Patent separated the three communities.

By 1770 Cobus Kil consisted of about a dozen farms
stretching for three miles along the creek. Christian Brown's
farm and mill was the farthest to the eat. Farthest to the west
were the Warner and Zea families, in present day Warnerville.
In between were the Borsts, at least three Shafer houses,
Koenigs, Fersters (site of present day Bull’s Head Inn),
Boucks, Schells and Lawyers.

A log church was constructed in Turloch and served all
three communities. A rough, log structure was built as a
schoolhouse near Hans Shafer’s farm and run by a German
Schoolmaster named Paughoer.

The residents of Cobus Kil proved to be staunch patriots
when war broke out in England in 1775. A militia company
was formed for protection and became the fourth company,
Albany County Militia. Christian Brown was elected Captain
and Jacob Borst, Jr. Lieutenant. The first few years of the war
were uneventful although the militia was called up periodical-
ly for service in the Mohawk and Schoharie Valleys. The war
entered a new phase in 1778 when many of the Iroquois
joined the Tories in a campaign to terrorize the frontier settle-
ments.

In May 1778, after a few Indians were seen near Lambert
Lawyer’s farm, the militia assembled at Christian Brown's
residence. A messenger was sent to request assistance from
the Schoharie forts. Captain William Patrick of the 7th



COBLESKILL

Massachusetts Infantry arrived at Brown's the next day with
thirty two men from his company and assumed overall com-
mand. The joint force then marched west to Lawyer’s farm
where they halted and sent out scouts. They were joined at
Lawyer’s by a handful of Duanesburgh militia and probably a
few more of Brown's militia. When the scouts reported seeing
Indians at George Warner's farm Captain Patrick moved the
whole force, now numbering fifty seven men, there.

Warner’s house was built on a knoll south the creek, near
the Warnerville cemetery today. From there, Indians could be
seen running to and fro in the fields to the west. Patrick
formed the men into a line and advanced against the wishes
of Captain Brown who feared a trap.

The soldiers chased the Indians into the forest until, about a
mile west of Warner's, the two companies were ambushed by
a force of about two hundred Tories and Iroquois, led by
Mohawk leader Joseph Brant. After Captain Patrick was
killed Captain Brown ordered a retreat which quickly turned
into a race back to Warner's farm. A large number of
Continentals and militia men were shot down as they ran.
Five men, three of Patrick's and two of Brown's, took shelter
in Warner's house and attempted to make a stand. The house
was quickly surrounded and burned. Two Massachusetts men
were killed fleeing the house, the other three men perished in
the flames.

The survivors made their way to Schoharie, preceded by
their families who had left as soon as they heard the sounds
of battle. Captain Patrick and fifteen of his men were dead

LYNETTE S.B. LAWYER, CPA

2668 State Route 7, Cobleskill, NY 12043

(around back 1st floor in Silo at
Crossroads Barn, next to Stewart’s)

518-254-7320
Personal &

Business Taxes
Call for an appointment.

2 FOCR g....'é
§ %é(‘.‘}“f ___/4. g{-f/%ﬁ, j&:wmt/ﬂoww

TEN e W
of angan j,u’wm/ ..._/(2/0!'}?2 &TF"&

thie;:a’fer Cobleskill’s only privately owned
Schoharie and operated Funeral Home!
County .
area for over 3 M|Chae| J. Langan
35 years. | Owner/Licensed Funeral Director

327 Main Street, Schoharie, NY 12157 « (518) 295-8175
108 Chapel Street, Cobleskill, NY 12043 « (518) 234-2525

www.langanfuneralhome.com www.guffinfuneralhome.com

“Serving with dignity, respect and honesty”

along with six Cobus Kil militiamen. Another five men were
wounded and three others captured.

The Tories and Indians burned the community as far east as
the schoolhouse.

The following winter a fort was constructed around Pieter
Shafer’s ruined farm. It was named Fort DuBois in honor of
the officer commanding the soldiers who built it. The surviv-
ing farmers only worked their fields in armed parties after
that. Most families were reluctant to return. The fort was
abandoned and burned during a raid three years later.

By the time the war ended the community was greatly
changed. A few families, their men nearly all killed, left the
area for good. New settlers moved into the valley, many of
them soldiers receiving land as compensation for years of
back pay. Many were English speaking Yankees, leaving New
England where land was becoming scarce and expensive.

Jacob France, son of New Rhinebeck patriot Sebastian
France, settled south of the Borst farm. The area soon became
known as France's Corners and eventually Mineral Springs
after a spa was built there in the 1860’s.

The area known as Punchkill developed into a small village
after two highways, the Loonenberg Turnpike and the
Unadilla Turnpike, were run through in the early 1800’s. A
brewery operated there for more than sixty years. The hamlet
known as East Cobleskill today.

The spring fed streams running into the creek near the
Berner farm, east of Cobus Kil, ran year 'round and proved to
be exceptional for powering mills. Numerous mills for grind-

Allphase

‘'COMPLETE FIRE & CHIMNEY
Masonry |Fireplaces|Chimneys| Stoves

518-234-4919
Visit Our Showroom!
105 Kenyon Rd. Cobleskill, NY
allphasefires.com
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COBLESKILL

ing grain, sawing lumber and making paper operated there
over the years. A small farming community grew around the
general store and Methodist churches. That community is
Barnerville today.

Fulling mills for finishing wool cloth were established far-
ther downstream as early as 1816. Since John Brayman was
the principle businessman in the area the community around
the business became known as Brayman's Mills. Saw mills
and later a grist mill and cider mill would operate there as
well. The community is called Bramanville today.

Goldsbro Banyar finally sold off his land north of Cobus
Kill, not to local Germans but to New England Yankees. The
first settlers, known as the “Yankee Triumphorate,” were
Captain Dana, Captain Reddington and Lieutenant Grosvenor,
all officers of the Connecticut line. They were followed by
more New Englanders including many skilled craftsman and
attorneys. Master builder Seth Wakeman built numerous
houses in the area including Bull's Head Inn and Beekman
Mansion. A New England style community grew around a
traditional village green. The area, still commonly referred to
as “The Patent” began to be known as “New Boston.” In 1819
it was renamed Lawyersville in honor of resident U.S.
Congressman Thomas Lawyer, ironically one of the only
Germans in an English community.

In the 1840’s Lester Howe opened his famous Cave to the
public and the village of Howes Cave took root around it.
Sadly much of that area was later destroyed by quarry opera-
tions.

JOANNE DARCY CrUM, L.S.

PrROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR

479 West Main Street
Cobleskill, New York 12043
«» Tel (518) 234-4650
¢ Fax (518) 234-7405
% E-Mail info@jdarcycrum.com

SURVEYING SERVICES OFFERED INCLUDE:
Boundary Line Determination, Mortgage, Subdivision,
Topographic, Wetland & Engineering Surveys,
Land Planning and Planning Board Services,
Expert Witness Testimony.

JoaNNE DArcy CruM, Esq.
Attorney and Counselor at Law

Land, Law, Leverage

479 West Main Street
Cobleskill, NY 12043

Tel: (518) 234-4650
Fax (518) 234-7405

joanne@jdarcycrum.com
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Cobus Kil was renamed Cobleskill and was incorporated as
a town in 1797. The village grew slowly. The first merchants
and doctors set up their businesses in the village in the
1790’s. A few mills began operating in the early 1800’s fol-
lowed by a few small factories which produced farm tools
and machinery. When the Railroad ran through the village in
1864 Cobleskill changed dramatically. Soon there were seven
hotels, nine grocery stores and three Blacksmith shops. The
population quadrupled in twenty years. The village was incor-
porated in 1868. Factories and mills opened all along the rail
line as well as dealers in hops and grain. By the turn of the
century so much pancake flour was being produced in the vil-
lage that it became known as “the Pancake Flour Capitol of
the World.” A modern high school was built early in the early
twentieth century followed by a State School that would
eventually become SUNY Cobleskill. Factories produced
farm implements, refrigerators and textiles. Bottling plants
shipped milk and soft drinks.

Most of the industry is gone today but Cobleskill remains
the largest village in Schoharie County. It has become the
main shopping center for the county as well as a college town
and tourist area. The village is struggling today to maintain a
balance between shopping and tourism. - Ted Shuart

CALVARY ASSEMBLY OF GOD
960 Mineral Springs Rd., Cobleskill.............. 518-234-4182

CALVARY CHAPEL OF THE HILLS
Calvarychapelofthehills.com
137 Legion Drive, Cobleskill ........................ 518-294-2007

COBLESKILL UNITED METHODIST
cobleskillumc.org

107 Chapel St., Cobleskill............ccccevrrnennen. 518-234-3671
FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH
492 West Main St., Cobleskill........................ 518-234-2729

FUSION COMMUNITY CHURCH
fusioncommunitychurch.org
375 North Grand St., Cobleskill .................... 518-234-8339

CP\SSANDRA 'S
HAIR STUDIO

E 518-527-O662

|27 LARK STREET COBLESKILL, NEW YORK
Book online at cassandrashairstudio.glossgenius.com




TWO GREAT LOCATIONS!

Middleburgh Cobleskill
Everything Shoppe Everything Shoppe
312 Main Street, 980 East Main Street (next to Dunkin
Middleburgh, NY 12122 Donuts), Cobleskill, NY 12043

518-827-4548 » Tues. - Sat. 10 am-3 pm  518-254-0181 « Tues. - Sat. 10 am - 3pm

New and Gently Used Clothing and Merchandise

Dishes, Glassware, Assortment of Decorations & Much More!

Inventory Changes Daily .onanon;

accepted

Homemade Handcrafted Items during

business
~Operated by Senior Council~ ® ~Sales Benefit Senior Citizens~ hours only.

' Tax
®
1] @ @ (=] ® e _ ] ® ] ' o [ ] @ @
® "o e @ ® © o0 o ® 0 © © o o

deductible.

Community

Center 127 Kenyon Road 5506 State Hwy. 7,
Cobleskill, NY Oneonta, NY
518-823-4338 607-267-4732

1 yr. Membership!

Makes a
Great Gift!

* Exercise & Wellness Classes
+ Arts & Crafts Classes * Bus Trips both Day & Multi-Day
« Tech Assistance w/Smartphone & Computer Classes ¢ Special Events including Musical, Comedy
+ Educational Presentations + And So Much More!
Our classes are open to anyone 18 or above.
Proudly operated by the Council of Senior Citizens, Schoharie County.

- - -

2025 SCHOHARIE VALLEY COMMUNITY DIRECTORY ¢ PAGE 13



COBLESKILL

ST. VINCENT-DE PAUL CATHOLIC
stvincentdepaulcobleskillny.com

138 Washington Ave., Cobleskill .................. 518-234-2892
VALLEY BIBLE BAPTIST
745 Mineral Spring Rd., Cobleskill .............. 518-823-5224

COBLESKILL REGIONAL HOSPITAL
178 Grandview Drive
Cobleskill, NY 12043 .....coooveiiiieeeieiees 518-254-3456

COBLESKILL COMMUNITY LIBRARY
Serving the Cobleskill-Richmondville School District
Kimberly Zimmer, Library Director,
email: Cob-director@muvls.info
Website: www.communitylibrarycobleskill.org
Facebook: theCommunityLibraryCobleskill
Connecting people and ideas for over 100 years!
110 Union St., Cobleskill............cccccoveenennee. 518-234-7897

IROQUOIS MUSEUM

We acknowledge that the Iroquois Museum is located on the
ancestral lands of the Kanien’kehé : ka (Mohawk people). We
honor all Haudenosaunee through our educational exhibitions,
events and activities. We value their connection to this valley

A Local Name You Can Trust

Ostrander
Insurance Agency

518-517-1500

457 State Route 7, Cobleskill NY

{ Erie

Call to save. ~lirsiance
O ...

ange, Erie Insurance
Erie Famly Life Insurance Co. (Erie, PA) or Erie Insurance

Erie Insurance Property & Casualty Co., Fla
Co. of New York (Rochester, NY). Detals at eri

YES! You Can

Improve Reading, Writing, or Math Skills. Study for the High
School Equivalency Test. Improve English Speaking Skills.
107 Chapel Street

Cobleskill, NY
(518) 234-2576

FREE Tutoring Services
Literacy New York- Fulton,
Montgomery, and Schoharie Counties | 73 N. Main st.

Gloversville, NY
(518) 725-1440
(518) 227-3786 (cell)

Call today for an appointment.

www.lvasc.org
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and offer our respect to all Haudenosaunee people of the past
and present.

324 Caverns Road, Howes Cave, NY ............ 518-296-8949
VAN WAGENEN LIBRARY (SUNY COBLESKILL)

Cobleskill.edu/library

142 Schenectady Ave., Cobleskill .................. 518-255-5841
ALCOHOLICS ANONYMOUS

If you have a drinking problem, we offer a solution!

Try noon time meeting of every Monday at the

Cobleskill United Methodist Church, 107 Chapel Street.
Information .........c.c.oooeiiiiiiiiiiiiin 774-266-3772.

ALCOHOLICS ANONYMOUS
Alcoholics Anonymous beginners meeting
Fridays at 5:30 pm. Cobleskill Methodist Church
107 Chapel Street, Cobleskill.

AlI-ANON
Is your life affected by someone else's drinking
and/or drug use? Feeling hopeless? Try a meeting;
noon on Tuesday, Cobleskill Methodist Church,

Chapel Street. Info ....................o 518-763-5107
COBLESKILL ELKS LODGE #2040
152 Legion Drive, Cobleskill.......................... 518-234-8130

COBLESKILL ORDER OF EAGLES #2695
P.O. Box 87, 159 Legion Drive, Cobleskill ....518-234-4520

LITERACY NEW YORK- FULTON- MONTGOMERY
& SCHOHARIE COUNTIES

Cobleskill United Methodist Church

107 Chapel St., Cobleskill, NY .....cccceeenee 518-234-2576

PEACEABLE DAY QUILTERS (PDQ)
Meet 1st Tuesdays of the month from Sept. - June
at Fusion Church hall, Cobleskill, NY
from 10:30 am - noon.
Info at ...ccoovvvvieiiene, facebook / peaceabledayquilters

Law Office of %
Michael J. Shultes, |

PLLC = 1,
o Criminal Law -~
o Estates & Wills e Real Estate ‘
o DWI & Traffic 3

Call Now For Consultation 518-234-2317

523 W. Main St., Cobleskill www.shulteslawoffice.com




COBLESKILL

FIRE DEPT.

610 East Main St., Cobleskill

NON-eMErgencies ..........coceeeveeeerueeeenueeeenueenne. 518-234-2424
MOTOR VEHICLE OFFICE

284 Main St., Schoharie...........cccceeeeevinnenennn. 518-295-8317
POLICE DEPT.

378 Mineral Springs Rd., Cobleskill

NON-eMErgencies ..........coceeeveeeerueeeerueneenueenne. 518-234-2923
POST OFFICE

111 Union St., Cobleskill 12043 .................... 518-234-4011
TOWN CLERK / COLLECTOR / REGISTRAR

378 Mineral Springs Rd., Cobleskill .............. 518-234-1719
VILLAGE CLERK

378 Mineral Springs Rd., Cobleskill .............. 518-234-3891
IORIO PARK

112 Pleasantview Dr., Cobleskill

VETERANS MEMORIAL CENTRE PARK
514 West Main St., Cobleskill

SCHOHARIE COUNTY PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
114 Rock Rd., Cobleskill, NY 12043 .......... 518-234-0952

COBLESKILL SUNSHINE FAIR
August 5-10, 2025
WWW.sunshinefair.org ............cccecvvercncncnnne 518-234-2123

COBLESKILL-RICHMONDVILLE CS
Radez Elementary
319 Main St., Richmondville .......................... 518-294-6621

PRINTING & PACKAGE CENTER
. 2 lry”

WE DESIGN « WE PRINT « WE CARE
518.234.4442 » www.raceprinting.com

111 Barnerville Road, Cobleskill, NY 12043

Ryder Elementary

143 Golding Drive, Cobleskill ........................ 518-234-2585

Golding Middle

193 Golding Drive, Cobleskill ........................ 518-234-8368

C-R High School

1353 Rte. 7, Richmondville ...............ccuueeee.. 518-234-3565
SUNY COBLESKILL ........ccccccocvvininininnnn. 518-255-5011
THE GATHERING PLACE

50 Plus Community Center. Providing cultural,

social, and recreational activities, and help meet the needs of
the 50 Plus Community in Schoharie County

and surrounding areas.

www.schoharieseniors.org

127 Kenyon Road Cobleskill, NY ................ 518-823-4338

SCHOHARIE COUNTY OFFICE FOR THE AGING
113 Park Place, Schoharie, 12157.................. 518-295-2001

Docacy Do's

MELISsA MERRIGAN

Certified & Professional Dog Groomer

118 Akers Drive
Cobleskill, NY
12043

518-925-6291

Farm & Pet Supply Store
For All Your Q Nutrena
Nutrena Feed Needs e (518)234-2527
117 France Lane — : il
Cobleskill, NY 12043 === -

0 "
U O dl. ¢ | Uaell
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CONESVILLE

TOWN OF CONESVILLE

By Beatrice Mattice, Historian

The first settlement in what is now the Town of Conesville,
was made by Ury Richtmyer and a few other families in
1764, during the period between the close of the French and
Indian War and the commencement of the Revolution. The
settlement was on the land of Die's Manor, six miles from the
Schoharie Creek and some distance from other settlements.
Richtmyer built the first log house very near the present state
historical marker for the Richtmyer Tavern, between the
hamlets of Conesville and Manorkill. It is told that the Old
Richtmyer homestead was bought of the Indians for a pound
of butter per acre.

Little is known of the other families who settled here with
the Richtmyers. The patent reads that Ury Richtmyer was a
blacksmith and Hendrick Weaver was a farmer so probably
Weaver also lived here. An early map of a section of the Die's
Manor settlement shows the houses of Dies and VanlLoon,
John Everson, Richtmyer, Jacob VanLoon and Abraham
VanLoon. Early county histories tell that Ury Richtmyer was
followed by a son John, then Peter Richtmyer, who had lived
at Hartmansdorf (near Middleburgh) "wandered off" to the
Manorkill when but a young man and settled with Ury. Other
sources tell that Ury was one of seven brothers who came to
this country in 1745 from Germany, and that he had five sons:
Peter, Cobus, Frederic, John and George.

Die's Manor soon became a valley of relatives. Frederic
Richtmyer married Rebecca VanLoon on October 5, 1770;
George Richtmyer married Rebecca Everson and Johan
George Richtmyer married Margaret Shoemaker. Matthew
Dies married Eva VanLoon and their children Christina mar-
ried Benjamin Fanning, Jacob married Margaret
Schoonmaker and Jane married Isaac VanLoon. John Die's
other son married a Richtmyer. More than one child was
named John Dies Richtmyer.

The early settlers were hardy and industrious, who usually
lived at peace with themselves and the Indians who passed
through the valley. However, due to a misunderstanding, the
Indians plotted to burn out Richtmyer and his family in the
dark hours of one night. One of the neighbors who under-
stood a little of the Indian language, happened to be at the
Fanning Mill and overheard the plot. He hurried home, made
a bridle out of basswood bark, caught his horse and rode at a
fast pace to warn the Richtmyers of the danger. The family
hurried to a place of safety and before midnight were sitting
upon a hill that overlooked their cabin. They had not been
there long when they saw the red-tongued flames consuming
their home, which the Indians supposed was consuming the
family as well. Richtmyer proceeded to rebuild his burned
home and soon had another shelter erected for his family.

There was peace along the Manorkill for several years, until
the Revolution began in 1775. Twelve men from Die's Manor
were taken prisoner by the Tories, and the families soon left
for the safety of the settlements along the Schoharie. After the
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war ended with the signing of the Treaty of Paris in 1783, the
early settlers returned to their burned-out homesteads and
started anew.

CONESVILLE METHODIST CHURCH
1295 State Hwy. 990v, Gilboa .........ccccuneee 607-588-4200

COBLESKILL REGIONAL HOSPITAL
178 Grandview Dr.,Cobleskill, NY 12043 ....518-254-3456

CONESVILLE FIRE DEPT. & RESCUE SQUAD
1292 State Hwy. 990v, Gilboa .......c..ccccueneee 607-588-6622

CONESVILLE COMMUNITY LIBRARY
Located in the Town Hall for local residents

MOTOR VEHICLE OFFICE

284 Main St., Schoharie, 12157 ........cccccocee. 518-295-8317
POST OFFICE

373 Ste Hwy. 990v, Gilboa, 12076 ................ 607-588-6667
TOWN CLERK

1306 State Hwy. 990V ......cccovvirininininiiiens 607-588-7211

CONESVILLE COMMUNITY PARK
Located next to the Firehouse.
Pavilion, playground & ball field

SCHOHARIE COUNTY PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
114 Rock Rd.
Cobleskill, NY 12043 .....ooovvviieiiiiiiieeieeenne 518-234-0952

GILBOA-CONESVILLE CENTRAL SCHOOL
gilboa-conesville.k12.ny.us
132 Wyckoff Rd. ..ecvvieiiiiiciicccce 607-588-7541

SCHOHARIE COUNTY OFFICE FOR THE AGING
113 Park Place

Schoharie, 12157 .....ccccceviiviiininiiiiiicncee 518-295-2001



DUANESBURG

DUANESBURG

Duanesburg, named for James Duane who held most of it as
an original land grant, is a small town in the western part of
Schenectady County. The town’s earliest settlers chiefly com-
prised of English Quakers and a group of settlers originally
from Kent, Connecticut. The Delaware & Hudson Railroad
provided major freight traffic carrying Pennsylvania coal
northeast to Albany, Boston & other eastern cities. In the late
20th century, farming fell into decline and the town became
home for commuters working in Schenectady & Albany. The
population was 6,122 according to the 2010 census.

PRINCETOWN EVANGELICAL PRESBYTERIAN
princetownchurch.com
3662 Giffords Church Rd ...........ccccoooeiiiie 518-355-0794

DUANESBURG FLORIDA BAPTIST
duanesfloridabaptistchurch.org
7967 State Rte. 30, Delanson ...........ccceeeveeee. 518-875-6762

REFORMED PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH
OF DUANESBURG

6512 Western Turnpike .........c.ccccceevveeieiennne 518-895-2448
EPISCOPAL PARISH OF CHRIST
CHURCH DUANESBURG

christchurchduanesburg.org

132 Duanesburgh Churches Rd. .................... 518-895-2383

BASSETT HEALTH CENTER DELANSON

1 Cooley Heights, Delanson ...........c.c.cccuee..e. 518-895-2000
ELLIS HOSPITAL
1101 Nott St., Schenectady ..........ccccoueennee. 518-243-4000

QUAKER STREET BRANCH LIBRARY
133 Bull St., Delanson ..........cccccoeeevveeeeeennes 518-895-2719

DUANESBURG AMERICAN YOUTH SOCCER
Ayso.bluesombrero.com/region1547

PO Box 186, Duanesburg ..........ccccceevueenueenee. 518-895-2149
DUANESBURG VOLUNTEER AMBULANCE CORP.

130 Cole RA. .eevveeeiieieeeeeeeeeee e 518-895-2200
QUAKER VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPT.

10136 Duanesburg Rd. ..........ccccoeeiiniiennen. 518-895-2121

POST OFFICE
7000 Duanesburg Rd., Duanesburg 12056 ....518-895-8872

TOWN CLERK
5853 Western Turnpike ..........cccooeveninnenen. 518-895-8920

DUANESBURG CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
Duanesburg.org
Elementary: 165 Chadwick Rd., Delanson ....518-895-2580
Jr-Sr. High: 163 School Drive, Delanson ...... 518-895-3000

ESPERANCE

ESPERANCE

Esperance, a welcoming community in the northeastern part
of Schoharie County, is named for the French meaning of
hope. The Town of Esperance was originally a part of the
Town of Schoharie. The earliest European settlement was at
Kniskern's Dorf in 1729 near the junction of the Cobleskill
and Schoharie Creeks. Artifacts left behind by Native
Americans go back many hundreds of years. These are usual-
ly found where small feeder streams flow into the Schoharie.
An early Native American trail ran through Sloansville head-
ing towards Canajoharie and just above the Village of
Sloansville was an Indian Stone Heap that was documented
by Missionary Gideon Hawley in the mid 1700's. It was
removed in the 1820's by a nearby farmer. It had been a
boundary marker for the Stone Heap Patent and was later a
trail used by the Palatines to visit their relatives in
Montgomery County.

The Palatine settlement was like a cooperative owned at one
time by the settlers as a group. By the mid 1700's lots were
being surveyed and the farms divided among the families. Not
much growth occurred until after the Revolution since there
was much destruction of Kniskern's Dorf at that time. In 1792
a law was passed putting this area in the Western Road
District and a State Road and Bridge across the Schoharie at
what was called "State Bridge." To accommodate the workers
on the road and early travelers, the earliest farms started to
take in boarders. The area around the Bridge was surveyed
and broken up into building lots by its owner Harmonous Ten
Eyck, a merchant of Albany. The lots sold slowly; and
William North of Duanesburg seeing an opportunity, purchas-
es the lots from the Ten Eycks in 1806. The Post Office had
been established in a Hotel near the Bridge in 1805 under the
name Schoharie Bridge. William North gave it the name
"Esperance"” the French word for "Hope." The village was
later incorporated in 1818 and had the first fire department
and engine in the county. The Deluge, a used pumper said to
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ESPERANCE

date from 1731 is displayed at the Old Stone Fort in
Schoharie. In 1799 the State could no longer keep up with the
demand for roads and bridges in New York, so investors
bought shares in Turnpike Companies hoping the improved
highway would benefit them as land owners along its route.
The State Bridge was washed away in 1798, so the Great
Western Turnpike Co. was formed. William North was an
office holder in both the State and Private concerns to con-
struct the road. In 1812 Theodore Burr built an impressive
two lane covered bridge spanning 300 feet across the
Schoharie Creek. A toll house was located on the Esperance
side to collect tolls and the Brown Brothers of Sloansville
were early gate keepers there. To avoid paying tolls, shunpike
roads were formed and travelers still forded the creek when
possible to avoid the bridge toll. Over 700 teams a day
crossed this bridge and traffic was heavy during the War of
1812.

The beauty of the Schoharie Creek and its abundant bass
population draw sportsmen to its public access areas. For gen-
erations of young people it is a great place for boating and
recreation along its winding path towards Burtonville. We
invite you to take a leisurely ride through our scenic Town
and cross the Schoharie Creek as other travelers have done
for over 200 years.

ESPERANCE SLOANSVILLE UNITED METHODIST
175 Main St. oo 518-875-6279

Going Once...
Going Twice...

SOLD!

wl\%\

Check out
My Shopper for
all the latest
auctions!

Shopper

www.myshopperonline.com
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BASSETT HEALTHCARE / DELANSON
1 Cooley Heights, Delanson ............ccccee.... 518-895-2000

COBLESKILL REGIONAL HOSPITAL
178 Grandview Drive

Cobleskill, NY 12043 ....ooovviiieiiieeeeeeeeene 518-254-3456
QUAKER STREET LIBRARY

133 Bull St., Delanson ........ccccceevvvvvvvvvevennnns 518-895-2719
ELKS LODGE

111 Main St. oeeeeeeiieiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 518-875-6200

FIRE DEPT. & RESCUE SQUAD
115 Church St.
NON-EMErgency ........cceceeeevuereenuerieenennennns 518-875-6088

BURTONSVILLE VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT
2053 Burtonsville Rd., Esperance, NY 12066
Meetings held monthly.
........................................................................ 518-875-6228
.................................................. (dial 911 for emergencies)

POST OFFICE

170 Main St., Esperance, 12066 .................... 518-875-6731
TOWN CLERK

104 Charleston St ........ccoovviviieeiiiiiieeeeeees 518-875-6109
VILLAGE CLERK

113 Church St....oeiieieeeeeeeeeeee e 518-875-9044

Playground, pavilion & basketball courts on Church St.

MEMORIAL DAY PARADE

SCHOHARIE CENTRAL SCHOOL
schoharieschools.org
136 Academy Dr., Schoharie.
Elementary School .........cccccoviiiiiininnennn. 518-295-6651
Jr./ Sr. High School ..o 518-295-6601



FULTONHAM / WEST FULTON

FULTONHAM / WEST FULTON

The town of Fulton, colonized by the British in early 18th
century today emcompasses the hamlets of Breakabean,
Fultonham and West Fulton. Notable locations in Fulton
include Vroman’s Nose, Max V. Shaul State Park, Bouck’s
Falls and Bouck’s Island. Bouck’s Island was home to one
New York Governer, (1843-1844), William C. Bouck. Bouck
resided at Bouck’s Island in Fulton until his death in 1859.

The town offers a variety of outdoor activities and other
attractions, Bouck's Falls, located on Panther Creek, Krum
and Nelson Falls on the Keyserkill, and several outstanding
falls on the outlet of Looking Glass Pond as the water drops
some 700 feet in less than 1/2 mile are well worth viewing.
Miles of maintained snowmobile trails, a mountain bike trail,
cross country skiing, assorted hiking trails including The
"Long Path Trail." The Long Path has its beginning at the
George Washington Bridge, enter the Town of Fulton in Cole
Hollow, continues on its way to Rossman Hill -- passes by an
Adirondack lean-to -- the Rossman Hill Cemetery -- over the
dike of Looking Glass Pond -- following the Ponds outlet
stream down to the Panther Creek Valley -- through the his-
toric Village of West Fulton -- up the hills of Partria -- down
Hard Scrabble -- and again up the hill to Vromans Nose --
and on the way to the Cliffs of Middleburgh. The town also
offers pond fishing at Mallot Pond (bass and trout - also
allows ice fishing) and bass fishing and boating at Looking
Glass Pond. Panther Creek, House Creek, Cole Hollow and
the Keyserkill have an abundance of "Wild Trout."

COBLESKILL REGIONAL HOSPITAL
178 Grandview Drive

Cobleskill, NY 12043 . .................. 518-254-3456
ONE ROOM SCHOOLHOUSE

Exhibit sponsored by Historical Society.

856 West Fulton Rd., West Fulton ................ 518-827-5618

THE TOWN OF FULTON HISTORICAL SOCIETY
........................................................................ 518-827-5618

MOTOR VEHICLE OFFICE
284 Main St., Schoharie .............ccceevveeiieennn. 518-295-8317

POST OFFICE
Fultonham
3431 State Rte. 30, Fultonham, 12071 .......... 518-827-5355
West Fulton
832 W. Fulton Rd., West Fulton, 12194 ........ 518-827-5116

TOWN CLERK
1168 Bear Ladder Rd., West Fulton .............. 518-827-6365

MAX V. SHAUL STATE PARK

SCHOHARIE COUNTY PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
114 Rock Rd.
Cobleskill, NY 12043 . .................. 518-234-0952

MIDDLEBURGH CENTRAL SCHOOL
Middleburghcentralschooldistrict.org
Elementary: 245 Main St., Middleburgh. ...... 518-827-3600

Jr.-Sr. High: 291 Main St., Middleburgh. ...... 518-827-3600

SCHOHARIE COUNTY OFFICE FOR THE AGING
113 Park Place
Schoharie, NY 12157 ................... 518-295-2001

GILBOA

HISTORY OF GILBOA

The Town of Gilboa was formed from the towns of
Blenheim and Broome on March 16, 1848. In the 1850 cen-
sus it was listed as the largest town in Schoharie County in
both acreage and population, Cobleskill was 7th. In 1890 the
acreage was unchanged but Cobleskill was number one and
Gilboa was number seven.

In its glory days Gilboa was a hub of activity, boasting two
hotels, usually filled with travelers, three churches,
(Methodist, Baptist & Dutch Reform), many businesses
including a cotton mill consisting of 100 looms and employ-
ing eighty people (this was destroyed in the 1869 flood and
never rebuilt), two blacksmith shops, a foundry, creamery,
telephone company, its own power plant (supplying power not
only for itself but also Stamford), two doctors, as well as sev-

septic material
screened sand
bank run
crusher run
crushed stone
round stone
top soil

b

,,JK 2L e e
Platterkill
SAND & GRAVEL

638 Flat Creek Rd.
Gilboa, NY 12076
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Delivery Is Available

607-424-8383
www. platterkillmine.com
M-F 7 am-4 pm

Sat. 7 am-12 pm




GILBOA

eral stores. A stage line, owned and operated by Lou O’Brien
ran to and from Middleburgh as well as Grand Gorge, where
it picked up the mail at the railroad station and brought it to
the Gilboa post office. Long after the days of horse travel,
people wanting to know if the mail had arrived would ask
“did the stage come yet?” The village also had a weekly
newspaper “The Gilboa Monitor” which operated until
October 10, 1918 when the owner had an opportunity to make
a move and though he felt he could publish the Monitor for
another three or four years, knew Gilboa was doomed and
decided to move on. (I have a collection of Monitors handed
down from my father that have been micro filmed by the
capitol newspaper project and are available for viewing in the
state archives).

May 4, 1890 was not a good day. Sometime in the night a
fire started and destroyed the entire business area.
Fortunately there were many enterprising individuals in the
village at that time and rebuilding started immediately, and
soon things were looking up again, but the devil wasn’t done
with us yet. About 1905, New York City began looking for
additional water to supply its needs. That was the beginning
of the end for a great little village. The town is still there and
consists of South Gilboa, Broome Center and Mackey. We
have an excellent high school, (the first central school in
Schoharie County, opening its doors for the first time in
September 1930) a post office, town hall, top notch highway
department, an active historical society (over one hundred
members) planning to open our museum some time in the
spring. We have a lot of optimistic and enthusiastic people
who have worked long and hard to make this overdue project
a success.

As it became evident that the village was going to be
destroyed, I.C. Wyckoff decided to try to establish a new vil-
lage. Most of the buildable land was claimed by New York
City so he selected a small section below the city’s taking
area to erect some buildings (five in all, plus two bungalows)
there was a feed and general merchandise store, a service sta-
tion & garage with eight apartments above designed to house
some of the displaced people, a restaurant and rooming
house, a grocery store with living quarters above, and a build-
ing planned for a recreation center (it served as everything
but), temporary high school while our new school was being
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completed, post office, and finally living quarters for two
families.

These buildings were all wood frame construction with
metal siding, and one by one each burned. Only one had any
of the original lumber left in it and that was recently razed to
make room for our new post office.

Richard Lewis, Town Historian

COBLESKILL REGIONAL HOSPITAL
178 Grandview Dr.

Cobleskill, NY 12043 .....ccccoovivininirininenn 518-254-3456
CONESVILLE FIRE DEPT.
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MOTOR VEHICLE OFFICE
284 Main St., Schoharie, 12157 .................... 518-295-8317

POST OFFICE
373 Rte. 990v, Gilboa, 12076 ..........ccceeeuee 607-588-6667

TOWN CLERK & TAX COLLECTOR
373 Rte. 990V ..cviiiiiiiiice 607-588-6400

GILBOA DAM

NY POWER AUTHORITY
BLENHEIM-GILBOA VISITOR CENTER
1378 State Rte. 30, North Blenheim ............ 800-724-0309

SCHOHARIE COUNTY PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
114 Rock Rd.
Cobleskill, NY 12043 ......cccooviiiiiiiiiieene 518-234-0952

GILBOA-CONESVILLE CENTRAL SCHOOL
gilboa-conesville.k12.ny.us
132 Wyckoff Rd. ...ccoeoveieiiiiiiinincnccen 607-588-7541

SCHOHARIE COUNTY OFFICE FOR THE AGING
113 Park Place, Schoharie, NY 12157.......... 518-295-2001



JEFFERSON

JEFFERSON

The Revolutionary War was fought during the years 1776 -
1783 and during this period there was no white person living
permanently in what was later known as Jefferson. In fact up
to 1776 and until 1795 there was no organized Schoharie
County. The area north of Ulster County east of the Schoharie
River was in Albany County. West of the River was Tryon
County, which was later called Montgomery with some divi-
sion and that was called Otsego County.

In 1788 Schoharie was organized as a town in Albany
County with no representation locally but a person or over-
seer was appointed in Albany County. In 1795 a petition was
presented to the Legislature for the information of a new
county. This was granted April 6, 1795. Then there was a
division of the County into six towns. Blenheim, the south-
ern-most of all, included the area of the present town of
Jefferson except a small portion which was taken from
Harpersfield, then in Otsego County. This area included the
present Jefferson and extended beyond Summit Lake and
Charlotteville and joined the town of Cobleskill. When
Summit was organized in 1819 the northwestern corner went
with Summit.

The land in this area situated in the edge of the Catskill
Mountains was covered with dense forests and rocks. There
were many springs of pure water and streams leading from
these springs. There were and still are many hills, ravines and
gravelly knolls which were left here from the glacial period.
Bald Mountain is the highest peak with an elevation of 2,700
feet. There were no highways. Perhaps there were Indian
trails or the path made by the deer and other wild animals as
they roamed at will over the area.

On December 4, 1771, this section was granted to John
Butler and others (recorded in Bk. 16 of Letters Patent, Sec.
Of State’s Office). In 1793, John E. VanAlen began to divide
it into lots and it was called Strasburg Patent. Sometimes it
was called, according to old deeds, the Town of Strasburg.
Strasburg Patent corners with three other patents at
Utsayantha Lake, namely: Blenheim, Harper and Great
Hardengurg. Lot No. 1 of the Strasburg Patent is at the point.
Robert McGregor and Elkanah Watson and others owned four
thousand acres in the Strasburg Patent dated October 10,
1803, recorded in the book #36 of Deeds at the Sec. of State’s
Office.

The two men who purchased land and settled here first were
Ezra Beard and William Cowley. Beard purchased what was
more or less the Marvin Churchill property of Robert
McGregor for two hundred sixty-eight pounds and ten
shillings, in 1794. William Cowley purchased land near Lake
Utsayantha where Roger Buechler now lives, in 1791. Col.
Stephen Judd, another early settler, purchased of Elkanah
Watson 1,937 6/10 acres of land for one thousand nine hun-
dred thirty seven pounds and twelve shillings in English
money.

By 1803 enough people had come into the area, mostly from

the New England States, to organize a town. They were
industrious, religious and farsighted. They wanted a new
home and accepted the challenge of wilderness living. They
built their log houses, raised their food, made their clothing
and reared large families.

CALVARY FULL GOSPEL FELLOWSHIP
cfgfjefferson.com
573 MOXIEY St. oevieiiiiiiiieiiiieceeeeeene 607-437-4798

COBLESKILL REGIONAL HOSPITAL
178 Grandview Drive

Cobleskill, NY 12043 ......ccoveeieeieeiieeieenenn 518-254-3456
STAMFORD LIBRARY

117 Main St., Stamford .............ccocvvereeeennnn... 607-652-5001
JEFFERSON RESCUE SQUAD

207 Creamery St ....c.ccoceeeevienieceenieieeeeeene 607-652-3617
POST OFFICE

102 Park Ave., Jefferson, 12093 .................... 607-652-7707
TOWN CLERK & COLLECTOR

677 N. Harpersfield Rd .......ccccocceveninincnennene 607-652-7931

SCHOHARIE COUNTY PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
114 Rock Rd.
Cobleskill, NY 12043 .......cccoevieeiiiiiiene 518-234-0952

JEFFERSON CENTRAL SCHOOL
jeffersoncentralschool.org
1332 State Rte. 10 ..o, 607-652-7821

SCHOHARIE COUNTY OFFICE FOR THE AGING
113 Park Place, Schoharie, NY 12157 .......... 518-295-2001
JEFFERSON SENIORS ..o, 607-652-9075
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MIDDLEBURGH

BRIEF HISTORY OF THE TOWN
OF MIDDLEBURGH

The Town of Middleburgh was originally settled by a group
of German Palatines led by Johan Conrad Weiser in 1712;
making it one of the oldest settlements in Schoharie County.
The original settlement Weiserdorf consisted of forty log and
earth huts that ran along a brook from the High School to
across the street from Memorial Park. Soon the surrounding
land was cleared for corps and the first grist mills appeared.
In 1734; the first Dutch Reformed Church was constructed on
the southern end of the settlement. By the time of the
American Revolution; the valley was producing eighty thou-
sand bushels of grain making it known as the "Bread Basket
of the Revolution."

During the Revolution there were constant threats from
Tories and Indians. After the Chrysler/McDonald raid of
1777, three forts were constructed in the Schoharie Valley.
The largest was the Middle Fort; which enclosed three acres
around the Johannes Becker stone farmhouse just north of the
present village. It would serve as refuge for the local citizens
and headquarters for the military in the Schoharie Valley dur-
ing the War. It withstood a six to eight hour siege on October
17, 1780 by a force of British, Tories and Indians under Sir
John Johnson. Three times Johnson sent out a flag of truce to
discuss surrender of the fort and three times the white flag
was sent back by fire from Timothy Murphy. Johnson's Raid
would leave "Weyserstown" and many of the farms and crops
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of the surrounding area in ashes.

A new village would be built after the war closer to the fort
around the second Dutch Reformed Church, which still
stands. It would be known as "Middletown" later changed to
Middleburgh, officially with an "h." The Town of
Middleburgh was formed on March 17, 1797. It included the
present Town of Fulton, which was separated in 1828. The
primary occupation of the people was farming and much of
the surrounding hills were cleared. There were grist mills,
saw mills and tanneries on the Schoharie Creek and its tribu-
taries. In the valley were two foundries, a paper factory, a nail
factory, a broom factory, and wagon builder.

During the first half of the 19th century, cattle would be
driven through Middleburgh via the Loonenburg Turnpike
(Today Route 145) from western New York to New York City.
A bridge and tollhouse was constructed to span the Schoharie
at the location of the current bridge in 1813. Inns and hotels
also sprang up along the turnpike. The largest of these were
the Bull's Head Tavern, the White House where the Red
Barrel is, and the Freemeyer House, later the Hotel Baker
where the new library is today.

During the Civil War, the Town of Middleburgh furnished
289 volunteers out of a voting population of 740. This repre-
sented the second highest proportion of servicemen for a
town in New York State.

During the latter half of the 19th Century into the early
20th, small family farms still drove the local economy. The
Town of Middleburgh became the largest hop producer in
New York State. The Village of Middleburgh was incorporat-
ed in 1881. Much of the present business district of the vil-
lage was completed during this period and small shops and
businesses filled the store fronts along Main Street and
Railroad Avenue. Keeping the technology of the times, The
Middleburgh & Schoharie Railroad was constructed in 1867,
The First National Bank of Middleburgh was formed in 1880,
The Middleburgh Telephone Company founded in 1897, and
M&S Power and Light was providing the local villages with
electricity about the turn of the century.

The years after the Great Depression brought many changes
to the Town and Village of Middleburgh. The Power

Keller Williams Realty,
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MIDDLEBURGH

Company became part of a larger entity which became
Niagara Mohawk. The railroad ceased operations in 1936.
The Hotel Baker burned in 1942. The local bank became part
of Central National Bank in the 1950's. Many of the small
farms disappeared and returned to forests and became hous-
ing subdivisions. The improved roads and the automobile
brought competition from larger stores and shopping malls
outside the area. As a result; many of the small businesses
became part of the past.

During the early years of the 21st century; an effort is now
underway to revitalize the Middleburgh area. A new public
library has been constructed on the site of the old Hotel
Baker. The beautiful wall along River Street has been rebuilt
with the added feature of Victorian style lighting. There have
been repairs and improvements to the Middleburgh Cemetery.
The School District buildings have been expanded and mod-
ernized. The Town Hall and Town Garage have received ener-
gy improvements. The bridge across the Schoharie Creek was
renovated in 2006 with the addition of the same lighting as on
River Street. Grants were obtained for building and business
improvements on Main Street and Railroad Avenue in the
Village. Many new homes have been built in the hills outside
the Village. Part of the new parking area has been created as
part of the new Creekside park.
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MIDDLEBURGH

MIDDLEBURGH LIBRARY
Middleburghlibrary.info
323 Main St.ceoiiiiiiiienecieeeeceeee 518-827-5142

SCHOHARIE VALLEY PIECEMAKERS (SVP)
Meet 2nd Tuesdays of the month from Sept. - June at
St. Mark's Church hall, Middleburgh, NY from 1 - 3 pm
Info at: www.schoharievalleypiecemakers.com
and on facebook

FIRE DEPT. MIDDLEBURGH

127 Railroad AVE ... 518-827-5277
MIDDLEBURGH EMERGENCY VOL. AMBULANCE
142 Cotton HIIl RA .....coovvniiiiiiiiiiiiiieee, 518-827-8098

DEPT. OF MOTOR VEHICLES
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TOWN CLERK & TAX COLLECTOR

143 Railroad AVe. ......ooooviviiiiieiiieieriieeeeens 518-827-5100
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TIMOTHY MURPHY PARK
4260 State Rte. 30

VROMAN’S NOSE HIKING TRAIL
264 Mill Valley Rd.

SCHOHARIE COUNTY PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
114 Rock Road
Cobleskill, NY 12043 ....ooveveieieiieiiieieeeeeeeeeeen, 518-234-0952

MIDDLEBURGH CENTRAL SCHOOL
Middleburghcsd.org
Elementary: 245 Main St., Middleburgh. ...... 518-827-3600

Jr.-Sr. High: 291 Main St., Middleburgh. ...... 518-827-3600

SCHOHARIE COUNTY OFFICE FOR THE AGING
113 Park Place, Schoharie, NY 12157 .......... 518-295-2001

NORTH BLENHEIM

NORTH BLENHEIM

Blenheim, one of the original six towns in Schoharie
County, was named from the 40,000 acre tract of land grantee
by King George III of England on November 28, 1769 to
forty grantees. This tract of land became known as the
Blenheim Patent. The Town of Blenheim was officially
formed from Schoharie on March 17, 1797.

Blenheim is an interior town, lying southwest of the center
of the county. The surface is a hilly upland, broken by deep
ravines and streams. Schoharie Creek flows north through the
east part, receiving the Westkill and several smaller streams
from the west.

Blenheim Ridge holds the distinction of having had not only
the first Town of Blenheim post office (1800), but also the
first post office established in Schoharie County. The longest
single-span covered wooden bridge in the world built in 1855
by Nicholas Montgomery Powers and used until 1932,
achieved national landmark status in 1964.

Lansing Manor House stands on a bluff overlooking the
Schoharie Creek. Few other farmsteads in New York State
have been able to boast of 18 varieties of trees at one time or
another, which was true to the Manor Estate in the early
1900’s. The Lansing Manor House complex was acquired by
the New York State Power Authority during the construction
of the Blenheim-Gilboa Storage Power Project in the early
1970’s



NORTH BLENHEIM RICHMONDVILLE

The Blenheim-Gilboa Pumper Storage Power project and
Minekill State Park on June 1, 1973 became the first unit that
was successfully operating as a pump. The Blenheim-Gilboa
Project was the first self-contained pumped storage project to
be built in New York State.

On March 13, 1990 a fiery explosion from a leaking
propane gas pipeline owned by Texas Eastern Products
Pipeline Company ripped through the upper village on Route
30 and the Westkill Road turnoff in the early morning hours.
Two people were fatally injured, and nine residences, includ-
ed among seventeen buildings, were destroyed.

In September of 2005, the Town of Blenheim held the 150th
Anniversary of the Covered Bridge.

NORTH BLENHEIM UNITED METHODIST
1881 State Rte. 30, North Blenheim ............... 518-827-6677

COBLESKILL REGIONAL HOSPITAL
178 Grandview Drive
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POST OFFICE
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TOWN CLERK & TAX COLLECTOR
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BROWN MOUNTAIN RESERVOIR
MINEKILL STATE PARK .......ccccccceinnnn. 518-827-6111

SCHOHARIE COUNTY PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
114 Rock Rd.
Cobleskill, NY 12043 ... 518-234-0952

GILBOA-CONESVILLE CENTRAL SCHOOL
Gilboaconesville.k12.ny.us
132 Wycoff Rd., Gilboa........cccccevverinincnencnnee 607-588-7541

SCHOHARIE COUNTY OFFICE FOR THE AGING
113 Park Place, Schoharie, NY 12157 .............. 518-295-2001

HISTORY OF RICHMONDVILLE

The Town of Richmondville was established by an act of the
New York Legislature on April 11, 1849. By this act
Richmondville became the sixteenth and last town to be
established in Schoharie County. The majority of
Richmondville was carved out from neighboring Cobleskill,
but a small portion was added from Seward in 1851. Besides
the village, there are several hamlets including Warnerville,
West Richmondyville (earlier known as Caryville), and Beards
Hollow.

Ordinarily such an event might be greeted with a lot of fan-
fare, but our nation was in the midst of “gold fever” during
the year of 1849.

The name Richmondyville has its origins in John Richmond,
an early resident of the area. A post office was first estab-
lished in 1825. Some deeds and post offices records refer to
Richmond-Ville (two words) as early as 1834. When the
town was incorporated in 1849 the two words were fused
tocreate Richmondville. Through the efforts of Thomas
Fairbanks, husband of John Richmond’s daughter, Jane, the
Richmond name was perpetuated for posterity. In 1881, the
village was incorporated as Richmondville too.

The coming of the railroad from Schenectady occurred in
1865. This was made possible through sales of shares via the
efforts of John Westover, an important businessman and
politician of the era. He was a key player in the early history
of Richmondville. With the arrival of the Albany and
Susquehanna Railroad (later known as the D&H, and today

e

"WHB

COLLISION

Richmondyville, NY
(518) 294-0029
Your one-stop collision repair shop

* Collision Repair ¢ Paintless Dent Repair
* All Insurance Accepted

Hours: Mon.-Fri. 8 am - 4:30 pm
“All we need is a claim number and we do the rest.”

_f/ whbcollision.com

2025 SCHOHARIE VALLEY COMMUNITY DIRECTORY ¢ PAGE 25



RICHMONDVILLE

CPX), the mills surrounding the many streams of
Richmondyville began to flourish. Many products such as
brooms, bricks, wool, lumber, sashes & blinds, clotheslines,
iron works, dried fruits, paper, prison clothes, cheese & but-
ter, wagons, and many small shops sprang up here in
Richmondville. Ray Byrne, newspaper man of the time, stated
that by 1875, “Richmondville has more factories than any
other towns between Albany and Oneonta.”

Several hotels dotted the landscape including the Westover
House, built in 1866 and stood massively where the post
office now sets. The Commercial Hotel also stood where the
fire company now resides.

In time the Bank of Richmondyville became an important
partner of the many mills and shops of the surrounding area.
Through the efforts of Lewis and A.D. Fraiser the bank was
established in 1893.

The Twentieth century saw important changes as
Richmondyville evolved. In 1932 the schools of the area con-
solidated and in 1993 a merger occurred between Cobleskill
Central School and Richmondville Central School. Today the
new high school building on the Warnerville flats in 1998 is a
testimony to the merger efforts.

As we look ahead, Richmondville has great potential. Its
power co-op makes it very attractive to businesses and resi-
dents. The Warnerville Water District established in 1999, has
come to fruition bringing safe and clean water to the residents
and businesses of that area.

Lastly, it is necessary to mention the recent creation of the
Richmondpville Historical Society. Their purchasing of the
Bunn Mill on High Street is a major step in preserving the
history of the Richmondyville area.

The productions of two recent video shows their effort and
dedication to preserving our heritage. New members are
always welcomed to join this worthy organization.
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COMMUNITY LIBRARY
Communitylibrary.mvls.org
110 Union St. Cobleskill ...........cccccveeenne 518-234-7897

RICHMONDVILLE FIRE DEPT.
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DEPT. OF MOTOR VEHICLES
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POST OFFICE
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TOWN CLERK & TAX COLLECTOR
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VILLAGE CLERK
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205 Main St...cooeiiiiiiiinicceeeceeee 518-294-6681
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Golding Middle

193 Golding Drive, Cobleskill ..........c.cccceueenee 518-234-8368
C-R High School

1353 Rte. 7, Richmondville ...............ccueeeee.. 518-234-3565
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SCHOHARIE

HISTORY OF SCHOHARIE

Schoharie was one of six original towns established in 1797,
shortly after the county was created in 1795. Over time ten
more towns were set up and boundary lines shifted until the
current boundaries were fixed in 1846. Two population cen-
ters within the town are Schoharie and Central Bridge.

Native Americans once resided here, having villages near
present day Schoharie and Central Bridge. Although members
of different Indian groups, their allegiance was to the
Iroquois.

In the early 1700’s Palatine Germans began to arrive. By
1713 they were planting crops and establishing villages
known as dorfs. Brunnen Dorf (Schoharie), Smith’s Dorf,
Fox’s Dorf, Garlock’s Dorf and Kneiskern’s Dorf (Central
Bridge) were located within current town boundaries. These
villages were important to the English colonization effort
because they were the first large movement into the hill coun-
try of upstate New York, thus expanding the line of the fron-
tier. The land was well suited to farming and supposedly the
first wheat in the country was grown near Central Bridge in
1713. Credit goes to a farmer named Lambert Sternberg who
planted one skipple of wheat and reaped 83. As one skipple is
about 3 pecks, he managed to harvest nearly 250 pecks of
grain! Soon other farmers began to grow wheat and this was a
significant development, for by 1780 the Schoharie valley
was known as the “Bread Basket of the Revolution”. This
fame and their location on the frontier would cause dire
results for the residents of Schoharie.

In May of 1775 Johannes Ball and other patriot leaders
formed a Committee of Safety. They met in secret and strove
to gather information on enemy (British, Tory, and Indian)
movements and to prepare for the defense of Schoharie. The
decision was made to fortify the stone Dutch church near Fox
Creek. It was a wise decision for late in the day on October
17, 1780 the Johnson Brant Army launched an attack on the
church, known as the Lower Fort. The defenders were able to
hold off the attack but could do little to prevent the enemy
from ravaging the farms and homes strung along the valley. It
would be a hard winter for the survivors.

But survive they did, as well as grow and prosper. In 1797
the first town meeting was held, and men were selected to fill
positions ranging from Town Clerk to Fence Viewers! By

K & M Fuels, Inc.
Schoharie 518-227-2093
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1798 Schoharie village was chosen as the site for the building
of a court house and jail. For some time the village was know
as Schoharie Courthouse. By 1800 the census lists the town
as having 1,696 residents. By 1872 the village contained sev-
eral county buildings, four churches (one of which was the
African M.E. Zion’s Church as there was a Black community
within the village), the Schoharie Academy, a bank, two
newspapers, three hotels, a hub and spoke factory, a carriage
factory and many stores and mechanic shops. Nearby was a
large brick yard producing 500,000 bricks a year. There were
two rail lines, one built in 1867 connecting the village to
Central Bridge, and another built in 1868 linking it with
Middleburgh. One resident of Schoharie, Hobart Krumm,
opened his law office in the village in 1857 and later went on
to become a N.Y. state senator, serving from 1895 until 1902.
Nearby Central Bridge was a station on the Albany and
Susquehanna Railroad. It had two churches, a hotel, various
shops, two gristmills and two sawmills. Hear the station were
two more hotels, five stores and several mechanic shops.
Several years earlier, in 1846, George Westinghouse was born
in Central Bridge. He would grow up to become one of
America’s greatest inventors.

As the town grew modern technology arrived on the scene.
Near the end of the 19th century Daniel Frisbee built a dam
on the Schoharie between Schoharie and Middleburgh which
produced the first electricity for the two towns. In 1880 a tele-
phone line was opened between these two towns and a central
office with a handmade switchboard was opened in Schoharie

YOUR FOREIGN CAR EXPERT ¢ YOUR FOREIGN CAR EXPERT

Don’t take that long
drive and pay dealer
prices...

COME

GET READY
FOR YOUR SUMMER VACATION.

Bring your vehicle to us for expert vehicle repair
& maintenance service for peace of mind.

e TEST YOUR BATTERY
e CHANGE WIPER BLADES
e CHECK HOSES, BELTS & FLUIDS

KLAUS’ AUTOWERKS

Open: 4894 Rte. 30, Schoharie, NY
m-£s-5 (518) 234-0000
183dX3 ¥VO NOIFHOH ¥4NOA » LIIdX3 ¥VI NOIFHO4 4NOA
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SCHOHARIE

in 1896 by Charles A. Deyo. He had six subscribers! This
Schoharie telephone company was in operation until 1957
when it merged with the Middleburgh Telephone Co. The first
paved road reached Schoharie in 1912, an extension of Route
443.

One of the most entertaining eras of Schoharie was the time
of open air movies which were shown on Main Street in the
summers from 1917 until 1942. Traffic was rerouted and a
screen was placed in front of the courthouse. People from all
over the country enjoyed the movies as local merchants sold
hot dogs, popcorn, ice cream and candy. After the movies
people strolled along Main Street or danced to music by a
local band playing popular jazz and dance tunes.

Today there are 3,299 people in the town. The town is home
to many operating farms and prosperous businesses providing
a variety of goods and services. Here one can find the Old
Stone Fort, the Palatine House, The Schoharie Valley Railroad
Museum, and other tourist attractions.

Prepared by Dawn Johnson

CHRIST THE SHEPHERD LUTHERAN
ctslutheranchurch.org

289 Main St. ..oooieiiiieiiiiceeeeeeeeee 518-295-6000
SCHOHARIE REFORMED

schohariereformedchurch.org

258 MaiN St eovveieieieieeicieeeceeee e 518-295-8177

SCHOHARIE UNITED PRESBYTERIAN
schohariepresbyterian.org

314 Main St. coooiiiiniiiiececeeeee 518-295-8931
SCHOHARIE VALLEY CHRISTIAN &
MISSIONARY ALLIANCE

2853 Rte. 145, oo 518-827-4994

COBLESKILL REGIONAL HOSPITAL
178 Grandview Drive
Cobleskill, NY 12043.....cccovvviiiiiieeeeeeneeen. 518-254-3456

SCHOHARIE FREE LIBRARY
Schoharielibrary.org
103 Knower AVe. ......cccceeeerieeeieiieiieieeeeeenes 518-295-7127

OLD STONE FORT MUSEUM
145 Fort Rd ..o 518-295-7192

AL-ANON
Is your life affected by someone else's drinking and/or
drug problem? Feeling hopeless? Try a meeting: 6:30 pm
Thursday basement of Schoharie Reformed Church.
For information ..........cccccecvvevvcncnencncncnenn 518-295-7419

T'he Clear Alternative to Braces g @&
3,199

Limited time only. Financing available.

ErvassinSpeand 129

Limited time only. Call for details. * Self pay patients only

e Extractions

Phone: 518-254-5664 Edfacebook [CareCedt] =

Schoharie Dental, PLLC

229 Main Street, PO Box 129 ¢ Schoharie, NY 12157
www.schohariedental.com ¢ Email: schohariedmd@gmail.com

Fax: 518-254-5665

GENERAL, PEDIATRIC AND ORTHODONTIC
DENTISTRY

Hazem Elbialy, D.M.D. General Dentist « Solomia Zhownirovyh, D.D.S. General Dentist
Eric Davis, D.M.D. General Dentist « Carl Fusco, D.D.S. Board Certified Pediatric Dentist
Cheryl Sorbero, D.D.S. Orthodontist « Alexis Daniels, D.D.S. Board Certified Pediatric Dentist

~ Accepting new patients
~ Accepting most insurances

Comprehensive Dental Care

* Regular check-ups and cleanings
¢ Digital x-rays

¢ Ceramic crowns and bridges

¢ Tooth-colored fillings

¢ Root canals

¢ Implants

¢ Dentures

* Invisalign

¢ Nitrous Oxide (laughing gas)

¢ Oral Conscious Sedation (children only)
* Same day emergency visit

Open: Mon.-Fri. 9 am-5 pm

518-254-5664
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SCHOHARIE

LONG PATH NORTH HIKING CLUB
P.O.Box 855, Schoharie
Check us out at schoharie-conservation.org/long path or on
Facebook: Friends of the Long Path.
New members welcome, for more info
call Mark Traver .....c...ccocceeveeviciieenieneenenn 518-944-7734

SCHOHARIE LEATHERSTOCKING CHAPTER,
SONS OF THE AMERICAN REVOLUTION
Meeting are twice a year, once in April and again in

November, and are held at The Old Stone Fort in Schoharie.

Contact Joe Sicluna for information.
.......................................................... jdsicluna@gmail.com

SCHOHARIE FIRE DEPT.

114 Fort Rd. ..o 518-295-7197
SCHO-WRIGHT AMBULANCE SERVICE

388 N. Main St ..cccoooiiiiiiiiiiciceieceeee 518-295-7425

DEPT. OF MOTOR VEHICLES

284 Main St. .cccoeviiiiieiieieceeeeee e 518-295-8317
POST OFFICE
420 N. Main St., Schoharie, 12157 ................ 518-295-7245

SCHOHARIE COUNTY CLERK
County Office Building
284 Main St. cvevveiiieieieieieeeeeene e 518-295-8316

TOWN CLERK

300 Main St....ccooieienieieniiienecieeeeeeeeie 518-295-6570
VILLAGE CLERK

300 Main St....cccoieiinieieniiieniecieeeeeeeee 518-295-8500
LILY PARK .....cocoiiiiiinininincncnecne 119-133 Ford Rd.
LASALLE PARK ........ccccccoviiiiiininnn, Off Warner Hill Rd.

SCHOHARIE COUNTY PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
114 Rock Road
Cobleskill, NY 12043 ....ooveeeieeiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeens 518-234-0952

SCHOHARIE CENTRAL SCHOOL
schoharieschools.org
136 Academy Dr ......ccooieiiniiiiiiiieee 518-295-6651

SCHOHARIE COUNTY OFFICE FOR THE AGING
113 Park Place, Schoharie, NY 12157 ........ 518-295-2001

142 TWIN OAKS LANE, SCHOHARIE, NY 12157
Office 518-827-5641
camp@twinoaksny.com

A FULL-TIME
SERVICE
OFFERING:
Income Tax
Preparation

Personal & Business Returns
¢ Accounting * Bookkeeping * Payroll

107 Prospect St., Suite 1, Schoharie, NY 12157
(518) 295-8066

www.eveningstarbookkeeping.com

SCHOHARIE

MERCANTILE

Home of Local Artisans

Located at 303 Main Street
Schoharie, NY

518-295-6030

www.schohariemercantile.com
schohariemercantile@yahoo.com

Winter Hours — Thursday-Sunday 11-5
April 1st — Sunday-Saturday 11-5
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TOWN OF SEWARD

The Town of Seward was formed on February 11, 1840
from the Town of Sharon, formerly a part of Albany County.
The Town was named after William H. Seward, then
Governor of the State of New York. William H. Seward
would later serve as Secretary of State under Presidents
Lincoln and Johnson and is most remembered for orchestrat-
ing the purchase of Alaska from Russia in 1867.

The Town is primarily agricultural and has beautiful rural
landscapes. It is locate in the northwestern part of Schoharie
County. The Town had and continues to have, several ham-
lets within its borders. Their names were derived from
diverse sources. These hamlets include: Dorloo, Janesville,
Hyndsville, Gardnersville, and Seward. In between these
hamlets the Town is characterized by low, flat, and rolling ter-
rain associated with the Mohawk Valley as opposed to the
high, rough mountainous terrain in Southern Schoharie
County and the lower Catskill Mountains.

The Town of Seward has a total area of 36.5 square miles.
Its highest elevation is 1800 feet above sea level and the low-
est point is at 1080 feet above sea level. It is located west of
the Capital District and is forty-two miles west from the cities
of Albany and Schenectady, forty-two miles east of Utica, 35
miles northeast of Oneonta, and twenty-five miles southwest
of Amsterdam. This central location allows beautiful pastoral
rural living while allowing residents and visitors to enjoy the
all that the key urban centers in central New York have to
offer.

Located a short drive from Exit 21 off Interstate 88, The
Town of Seward has two North South Axis roads consisting
of NY-10 and NY-145. Its primary East West road is NY-165.
These routes along with a superb network of town roads
allow easy access to the entire region.

The Town of Seward has a long history of European settle-
ment going back to before the Revolutionary War. During the
Revolutionary War residents were divided between those
loyal to the King (Tories) and those supporting independence
(Patriots). After the war the area began to grow. The various
hamlets developed local industries to support agriculture in
the area. Soon grist mills, saw mills, creameries, blacksmiths,
general stores, and post offices were available in most ham-
lets.

In the 1870’s, the Delaware & Hudson Railroad built the
railroad branch from Cobleskill to Cherry Valley called the
Cherry Valley Branch. This branch added station depots at
both the hamlets of Hyndsville and Seward respectively along
its route. This promoted growth in those two hamlets to the
detriment of the other hamlets. Still, the railroad made it eas-
ier for the Town members to ship their goods and allowed the
Town to prosper. The railroad branch remained operational
until the last freight shipment took place in 1956.

By the 1880’s the hamlet of Dorloo boasted a horse racing
track that operated until the early 1900’s. Seward built its
own school house that was first operational in 1893. This
school district was later merged with the one in nearby
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Cobleskill in the early 1930’s; however, the small Seward
school house remained operational until the 1950’s. The orig-
inal building still stands today in Seward and is an historic
structure use for arts and crafts, social events, and meetings.

Today, the Town of Seward still relies on agriculture; how-
ever, it also still has many small businesses that contribute to
the fabric of the community. It is great places to live, work,
and enjoy life.

COBLESKILL REGIONAL HOSPITAL
178 Grandview Drive
Cobleskill, NY 12043 .....ccoooeeeieiieeeeeeeeeeeene. 518-254-3456

DEPT. OF MOTOR VEHICLES

284 Main St., Schoharie ............coceevveeieennnn. 518-295-8317
POST OFFICE

111 Union St., Cobleskill, 12043 .................. 518-234-4011
TOWN CLERK / COLLECTOR

795 Lowe Rd., Cobleskill ...........ccccovvereeennnes 518-234-2292

SCHOHARIE COUNTY PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
114 Rock Road
Cobleskill, NY 12043 ..o 518-234-0952

COBLESKILL-RICHMONDVILLE CS
Radez Elementary

319 Main St., Richmondville .............c........... 518-294-6621
Ryder Elementary

143 Golding Drive, Cobleskill ..........c.ccccceeeee 518-234-2585
Golding Middle

193 Golding Drive, Cobleskill ............cccceuenee 518-234-8368
C-R High School

1353 Rte. 7, Richmondville ...............ccueeeee.. 518-234-3565

SUNY COBLESKILL .............ccooooiiiinnn, 518-255-5011

SCHOHARIE COUNTY OFFICE FOR THE AGING
113 Park Place
Schoharie, NY 12157 ..o, 518-295-2001



SHARON SPRINGS

TOWN OF SHARON splash. The Chalybeate spring water contains iron and is
especially beneficial for treating anemia.

The spa area has been declared a Historical District on the
National Register of Historic Places. A walking tour with
plaques along Main Street shows photographs and descrip-
tions of buildings, both past and present, at these sites. The
Sharon Historical Society maintains a small museum in the

i heart of the spa district. A major portion of its collection con-
Otsego County was formed out of Mont'gomery County in sists of artifacts and ephemera relating to the mineral waters,
1791 and New Dorlach became a town in Otsego County. The baths, and accommodations for summer guests from the

Town of Dorlach was annexed to Schoharie County when it 1860's through the 1930's.
was formed from parts of Otsego and Albany Counties in

1795. In 1797, Schoharie County was subdivided into six

towns, Blenheim, Bristol (Broome), Cobleskill, Middleburgh,

Schoharie, and New Dorlach, which was renamed Sharon at SHARON SPRINGS UNITED METHODIST

that time. S11US REE. 20 wvooorveeiereieeeseeeneeseeeee 518-284-2200
The Village of Sharon Springs covers approximately one

square mile and lays an average of 1,100 feet above sea level.
It is situated in a picturesque area and occupies the region
between the Adirondack and the Catskill Mountains. Native
Americans were probably the first to use the springs of

The Town of Sharon, originally called New Dorlach by its
German settlers, is located in the northeast corner of
Schoharie County. The whole territory of Schoharie County,
including New Dorlach, was originally part of Albany
County. In 1784, the western part of Albany was set off to
form Tryon County - later renamed Montgomery County.

COBLESKILL REGIONAL HOSPITAL
178 Grandview Drive

Sharon for medicinal and healing purposes. Cobleskill, NY 12043 .....cccoveeeiieiieeeiieees 518-254-3456
Sharon Springs gained international fame through the popu- BASSETT HEALTHCARE

larity of its four mineral waters. The white sulphur spring, 591-1 Highway Route 20,

which emits the strong smell of decayed eggs, is the most Sharon Springs, NY .....cccceevvevirecenreirieeeienens 518-284-2223

noted spring. Magnesia water is beneficial for various prob-
lems of internal organs. The Blue Stone Spring (Eye Water
Spring) is used for eye treatments and as a refreshing facial

947 Engleville Rd., Sharon Springs ¢ 518-225-5167

Open Mon.-Sat. - Or - Call - We are here for you! D I Es E L RE PAI R
SERVICING AND REPAIRING ALL

HAND-HELD OUTDOOR POWER TOOLS on all makes and models of

All Makes And Models

o Weedeaters » Edgers » Leaf Blowers ¢! G\ _ COMPACT TRACTORS
e Mini Tillers e Hedge Trimmers 8y =
e Chainsaws A0 4 and

Also Available: .
e Bars e Chains e Bar & Chain Oil many used & " §
e Hard Hats e Logging Supplies obsolete parts
e Weedeater Supplies - Heads, MKl
String, Blades & More

SMALL ENGINE SERVICES

John Rodden Sr. « John Rodden Jr. ¢ Lars Schmid
SHARON HILL GARAGE, INC.

R.L. PARSONS. INC. & SHARON HILL BODY SHOP

1506 Hwy. Rte. 20, Sharon Springs
(at the intersection of Rte. 20 & 145)

i‘%FORE&‘l‘_ER‘;

Chestnut St., Sharon Springs

Fuel Oil « Kerosene ¢ Diesel * Propane
* Burner Service & Repairs ¢ High Efficiency Furnaces & Boilers FULL SERVICE ON ALL MAKES & MODELS

¢ Heating Systems Cleaned & Repaired SAME DAY SERVICE

Professional
Saturday 6 am - 12 pm
at R.L. Parsons

o Central Air Systems Installed ¢ 24 Hour Emergency Serwce
For  H ,_ | USED CAR SALES | | SELF STORAGE UNITS |
Service call the | O | _ : Hours: Tuesday-Friday 6 am - 4 pm,
“Good Guys” | e > . :
(518) 284-2421 or 1-800-686-1626 (518) 284-2433 & = D=
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SHARON SPRINGS SUMMIT

SHARON SPRINGS FREE LIBRARY

129 Main St. oo 518-284-3126
SHARON SPRINGS MUSEUM
238 Main St. .ocveveieicieiceeeeeeeeeeeee e 518-284-2350

SHARON SPRINGS CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
Library’s Community Room.
Sharonspringschamber @ gmail.com

SHARON SPRINGS FIRE DEPARTMENT
137 Beechwood Rd. .....ccevvvvvviviviiiiiiiiieenee, 518-284-2491

DEPT. OF MOTOR VEHICLES

284 Main St., Schoharie ..........cccceevvveeeennnnen.. 518-295-8317
POST OFFICE

105 Main St., Sharon Springs ..........cccccceuenee. 518-284-2301
TOWN CLERK

129 Main St. e 518-284-3010
VILLAGE CLERK

129 Main Stu.cveeiieieieeeieeeceeeeee e 518-284-2625

SCHOHARIE COUNTY PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
114 Rock Road
Cobleskill, NY 12043 .......coooeiiiiiiiiiiiirieens 518-234-0952

SHARON SPRINGS CENTRAL SCHOOL - K - 12
sharonsprings.org
514 Highway Route 20........c.cccceiieiininiinnens 518-284-2266

SCHOHARIE COUNTY OFFICE FOR THE AGING
113 Park Place, Schoharie, 12157 .................. 518-295-2001

Shopper

Elizabeth

Mone-Tissiere
Advertising Consultant
Cell: (607) 267-2893

Itissiere@myshopperonline.com
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HISTORY: TOWN OF SUMMIT

Summit was created from parts of Cobleskill and Jefferson on
April 13, 1819. It was originally called Summit Four Corners
when it was first settled in the 1790’s. Summit also encom-
passes the hamlet of Charlotteville which had a larger popula-
tion than Summit during the mid 1850’s. From the 1872
Schoharie County Gazetteer/Directory: It is the south-west
corner town of the County, lying principally on the west bor-
der. The surface is a broken and hilly upland. The central
ridge forms a portion of the watershed between the Susque-
hanna and Mohawk Rivers, the highest summits being from
2,000 to 2,300 feet above tide. Charlotte River, the principal
stream, flows south-west through the west part. The soil is
gravelly and clayey loam. Most of the land is arable and the
people are engaged in dairying and hop raising. Other prod-
ucts are raised for home consumption. Near the village of
Summit it’s beautiful lake, about half a mile in length. It is
supplied entirely by springs and covers about 75 acres. The
first settlement was made by Frederick Prosper, from
Dutchess County, in 1794. Among the early settlers were,
Clement Davis, Samuel Allen, Martin Van Buren, Morris Kiff,
Robert and Abraham Van Duser, A.M. Frydenburgh, Joseph
L. Barnet, Amos Baldwin, Jonathan Hughes, Baltus Prosper,
and James Brown, many of whom were from New England.
The first birth was that of ? Frydenburgh, and the first mar-
riage that of Clement Davis and Lovina Allen, in 1797.
Daniel Harris taught the first school, in 1798, Benjamin Rider
kept the first Inn, James Burns the first store and ? Van Buren
erected the first saw mill. The town comprised a part of the
Strasburgh, Charlotte River, Stephen Skinner and Walter
Franklin Patents. The 1st town meeting was held on the st
Tuesday in March 1820 at the home of Martin Huffman.

COBLESKILL REGIONAL HOSPITAL
178 Grandview Drive

Cobleskill, NY 12043 ......cccoooeiiiiiiiniiienee 518-254-3456
SUMMIT RESCUE SQUAD
2912 Rte. 10 oo 518-287-1600

DEPT. OF MOTOR VEHICLES

284 Main St., Schoharie .............cceevveeiieennn. 518-295-8317
POST OFFICE

2906 Rte. 10, Summit, 12175 ......cccccvvennneee. 518-287-1533
TOWN CLERK

1580 Charlotte Valley Rd. .........cccceeieneniee 518-287-1430



SCHOHARIE COUNTY PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
114 Rock Road
Cobleskill, NY 12043 ....coovieeeiieeieeeieeens 518-234-0952

FREE SUMMER EVENTS

Assorted programs include, musical entertainers, live animals,
reptiles, dancers, nature talks & more.

2861 Rte. 10, (separate building, in upper parking lot)
Summit, NY 12175 .o 518-287-1660

CHARLOTTE VALLEY CENTRAL SCHOOL
Charlottevalleycs.org
15611 State Hwy. 23, Davenport .................... 607-278-5511
OR
COBLESKILL-RICHMONDVILLE CS
Radez Elementary

319 Main St., Richmondville .........c.ccocceeeenee. 518-294-6621
Ryder Elementary

143 Golding Drive, Cobleskill ...........c..coc..... 518-234-2585
Golding Middle

193 Golding Drive, Cobleskill ..........c.cccoeueeeee 518-234-8368
C-R High School

1353 Rte. 7, Richmondville ...............cccoceee. 518-234-3565

SCHOHARIE COUNTY OFFICE FOR THE AGING
113 Park Place, Schoharie, 12157 .................. 518-295-2001

WORCESTER

HISTORY OF WORCESTER
By Marilyn E. Dufresne, Town Historian
TOWN OF WORCESTER

The town of Worcester was formed from Cherry Valley on
March 3, 1797. Early settlers found the land to be perfect for
farming, grazing of sheep, the raising of hops and potatoes.
Blue mold ruined the hop crop around the early 1900s and
many men moved on to help with the construction of the Erie
Canal. Worcester blossomed into a veritable "Boomtown"
with the coming of the railroad in 1865. Buildings in
Worcester's Main Street Historic District feature iron cresting,
fish scale siding, fancy brickwork, and the "Boontown"
facade look.

Farming has proved to be a mainstay for the area over the
years, however, there are now fewer farms with larger herds.
Farms are now more diversified with the owners raising more
vegetables, beef cows and on the side beekeeping and the
production of maple syrup.

Worcester is a picturesque village with most of the houses
being well maintained. Like all small communities, the days
of the privately-owned family business has ceased to exist
leaving several vacant stores in both Worcester and East
Worcester. Worcester has a modern school with a recent 32.5

WORCESTER

million upgrade. The Wieting, a one hundred year old brick
building on Main Street, is available for the production of
plays and in the summer movies are shown on Friday and
Saturday nights. Also, a portion of The Wieting Building is
home to Worcester Free Library, serving Decatur, East and
South Worcester, Maryland, Schenevus, Westford and the
local community.

Between the two communities there are seven churches,
well-maintained fire departments and a water district for each
community. Worcester is home to a branch office of Citizen's
Bank, the Historic Worcester Inn, a funeral home, an insur-
ance office, Main Street Traders, Norton Hardware, Worcester
Market, a post office, several garages, Ardy's Restaurant,
Stewarts, The Center, a Historical Society Building and muse-
um, The Storehouse, two realty business, several attorneys,
Chris' Pizza, and a new shop, The Quilt Zoo. C. Herzog
Supply, a wholesale plumbing business, operates out of an
early brick building once an East Worcester school. Children
from East Worcester are bused five miles away to the school
in Worcester. J-emz a new car care specialist, and Larry
Anteman's Garage both have a business in East Worcester.

Also part of the Town of Worcester is the hamlet of South
Worcester located over South Hill about five miles on county
Route 39. The Charlotte Valley Inn, Inc., a bed and breakfast,
is still in operation in a valley bordered by Charlotte Creek.

Worcester's Town Board meetings begin at 7 pm and are
held on the 2nd and 4th Mondays of each month at the Town
Barn.

FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH

108 County Rd. 38, East Worcester .............. 607-397-1714
ST. JOSEPH CATHOLIC

201 Main St. eeeeeeeeiieiiiee s 607-397-9373
WORCESTER UNITED METHODIST

4 South HII RA. ..ooooviiiiiiiiiieec e, 607-397-9431

COBLESKILL REGIONAL HOSPITAL
178 Grandview Drive

Cobleskill, NY 12043 ......ooooiiieeieeeeieeeereeene 518-254-3456
BASSETT / A.O. FOX
1 Norton Ave., Oneonta ..........cc.ccoeevuvveeeeeennnns 607-432-2000

WORCESTER CENTRAL SCHOOL
Worcestercs.org
198 Main St. c..ooiiiiiiiiiicecccceee 607-397-8785
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W R I G H T P%SOT N([)al:nF ;tC,E Schoharie, 12157 ......ccceueueee. 518-295-7245

HISTORY OF WRIGHT TOWN CLERK

The Town of Wright was formed from Schoharie April 4, 105a School Street, Schoharie ..................... 518-872-9726
1846. It lies in the northeast part of Schoharie County, bor-
dering Schenectady and Albany Counties. It was named in
honor of Governor Silas Wright. Gallupville is the principle TOWN OF WRIGHT/ SCHOHARIE VALLEY
village. It is the only township in the county that doesn’t have LIONS CLUB
a namesake. Shutters Corners to the west, and Waldenville to Non-profit service organization providing help for those in
the east were other early settlements. Fox Creek is the princi- need of eyewear & medical equipment.
ple stream of water. Kings Creek meets Fox Creek near the PO Box 42, Gallupville, NY 12073 .............. 518-872-1091

village of Gallupville.
Zimmer, Becker, Shaffer, Hilts, Schell, Barber & Gallup
were among the early settlers. The Zimmer and Becker fami-
lies were besieged by the Indians and Tories on July 26, 1782. SCHOHARIE COUNTY PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
The Reformed and Methodist Churches were organized in 114 Rock Road
1844, and the Lutheran Church in 1852. The Reformed Cobleskill, NY 12043 ....cooveiiieeeeeeeeeeenns 518-234-0952
Church after being vacant many years, burned in 1932.
The Gallupville House, built in 1872, the last existing hotel

in town, has recently been saved and renovated. It is now a SCHOHARIE COUNTY OFFICE FOR THE AGING
gathering place for many meetings and social functions. 113 Park Place, Schoharie, NY 12157 ......... 518-295-2001

SCHOHARIE CENTRAL SCHOOL

COBLESKILL REGIONAL HOSPITAL Schoharieschools.org
178 Grandview Dr., Cobleskill, NY 12043 ....518-254-3456 136 Academy Drive
Elementary School .........ccccoviievieniiieneennnnne. 518-295-6651
Jr./ Sr. High School .......ccooovviiininiiiiinincne 518-295-6601

DEPT. OF MOTOR VEHICLES
284 Main St., Schoharie ............cccceeeeevernn... 518-295-8317
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ALL 7 EDITIONS...
SRECIAL SECTIONS...
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Shopper 75,05 .
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SURROUNDING AREA

Brownell’s m»

|
E ZI e an, LLC Referrals!

Complete Floor Maintenance

 Carpet, Rug & Upholstery Cleaning
* Tile & Grout Cleaning & Sealing
* House Cleaning Services

Aaron Baum Owner/Operator
PO Box 335, 8858 Western Tpke. Delanson, NY 12053

(518) 428-2445
brownellsezclean@aol.com

278 Atswell Rd., Richfield Sprlngs

_315-858-0841

Mon.-Fri. 8 am - 5 pm - Sat. 8 am - 3 pm - CLOSED SUNDAY __"-_
www.yodersqualitysheds.com

W.S. Hinkley

& Sons Inc.

SALES + SERVICE * TOWING
Many Dependable Vehicles Under

WOO%

“If it sounds foo good fo be frue,
it’s sfill true at Hinkley’s”

Rte. 30, Grand Gorge

(607) 588-7522

April 11" -

Deer Run
Campground

SEASON DATES FOR 2025:
October 13"

(NO water to sites until at least May 1st, bathhouses are available though)
deerruncampground@gmail.com

7489 State Highway 80,
Cooperstown, NY 13326

Located just 10 mi. north of the Baseball Hall of Fame,
and other local museums. Located just 1.5 mi. off RT. 20

607-376-7167

ACTIVITIES

e Swimming Pool (NEW)
e Tetherball

¢ 2 Ponds with wildlife to view
* Swing Set

¢ Basketball Court (NEW)
* Frisbee Golf Activities

We are within
walking distance to
the Springfield 4th of
July Parade!!
“The Place to be on
the 4th of July”

NECESSARIES

* 30AMP & 50AMP - full hook up sites available

* Hard Tents (aka Rustic Cabins)

* Primitive tent sites & water/electric tent sites (few)

» Two coin operated laundry facilities

* Two bath houses with free hot showers

* Campground Store (with firewood, ice, frozen
novelties, candy, beer, camping supplies, etc.)

* Access to Wi-Fi hotspot at the office ONLY

* ATM

HOLIDAY WEEKENDS

* Kids Activities * Campground Cookout
e Live Bands ¢ Adult Activities

e Cornhole Tournaments

Website: https://deerruncampgroundcooperstown.com/
Booking Information: https://www.campspot.com/
book/deer-run-campground-ny

Facebook: Cooperstown Deer Run Campground
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SURROUNDING AREA

CELEBRATING 75 YEARS IN BUSINESS

RBetter
Homes

L) Unique Gifts
: ‘\1 * Moccasins

' 7 [ Native American Gifts
- f- | | - Crystals & Candles
s + Jewelry: Sterling Silver & Turquoise
] [ Il « Local/Regional ltems
ittt A e MR W™ <N

607-264-3987 » www.thetepee.biz
7632 Hwy 20, Cherry Valley, NY

& Transport, Inc.

Your Affordable Housing Solution

Service
After The Sale IEEII m"’jlm'"

Is Our
#1 Priority

Scenic Country Setting for Your Golfing Pleasure

OW o Jr. Golfers & Beginners
e Bill Lake Modulars ® Used Homes N\EAD INI( S Welcome

e New Double & Singlewide Homes ) * Twilght & Senior Specials
. = * Riding Carts &
e Bank Repossessed Mobile Homes Golf Course Club Rentals
& DRIVING RANGE . , .
* Pavilion for Private Parties
www.betterhomesandtransport.com “Quality, Affordable Golf” e Lessons Availabl

. - . 18 Hole Executive Length Golf Course
Route 20, Richfield Springs Oven Daily Dann Tl Dusk

- - Like us on on Allen’s Lake Rd., between Rte. 20, Phone (315) 858-1646
315-858-2100 Facebook Richfield Springs & Rte. 80 Otsego Lake www.meadowlinks.com

D+

ICD

Your Source for Steel,
Stainless, Aluminum & More

Structural Sheet & Plate  Concrete Reinforcing
Shapes & Bars ~ Products Prcducts

Piles Additional Building
Decks & Grates Materials

Custom Fabrication \u.- 7 |
350 Ton P High Definiti P Drainage Snow Plow & Heavy
Bar.'t't‘lkeﬂESS F;Fgasm?i !Ir"s;t:ft'en Plate Roller Hycﬁg:lli?:nsalz:ear ) Prodg_cgts Equipment Wear Parts

.,

oy PR ok - = NN\ - -674-
/Metal Rnoflng 800-238-7833 or 607-674-6363

Pe... T \ Fax: 607-674-9706
== / & Siding \ www.SteelSalesinc.com
\ 4 .
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SURROUNDING AREA

Your Local Agent
Currently Offers

* Auto * Mobile Home

* Home * Collectable Autos

* Business « Recreational Vehicle
* Renters

* Boat Call today
« Motorcycle 20 & GIEE

518-868-2709

Cipperly Agency
123 Industrial Park Lane
Central Bridge, NY
agent@cipperlyagency.com

R
Deli Platters

Great American

Turnpike Power Products, LLC

Sales & Services

SNOWBLOWER WINTER We h
CLEARANCE Targe
Take $50 OFF All inventory of
In-Stock Snowblowers parts for most
2X, 3X and Troy-Bilt units makes and
CUB CADET DAYS models of
Take $150 to $1000 OFF lawnmowers
select models. and

. snowblowers
This sale runs 4/03/2025 through for your

6/15/2025 with great deals on all

. convenience.
our Cub Cadet lawnmowers in stock.

EXMARK LAWNMOWER PROMOTION
$2500 Instant Rebate on Exmark Lazer Z X-Series

Closeout models only. Now through 10/31/2025.

Turnpike Power Products, LLC
174 Western Turnpike
Altamont, NY 12009
518-355-8823
Under New Management

3 ft. Heroes

49 Main St., Prattsville, NY 12468 « (518) 299-8581

Full Service Grocery * Fresh Produce
e Frozen Foods * Custom Butcher

Monday-Saturday 8 am to 8 pm, Sunday 8 am to 7 pm
Visit our website: greatvalleygrocery.com
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SURROUNDING AREA

The market
is changing...
what is your
strategy?

Call me to guide
you through the
process for the
best results.

’ 4 \ —

DONALD DWYER

DONALD DWYER
[ oward REAL ESTATE ASSOCIATE BROKER
don.dwyer@randrealty.com
I Ia“na - I 914-907-2738 (cell)

R AND 914-769-3584 (office)
REALTY ’

Thornwood, NY 10594
www.landandcabinsales.com

T, BR
AV

P -
THELW‘m/" PEOPI.E

« Expert Well & Pump OuUFr - Gould & Franklin Electric
*Sales & Service Pump Dealer
* 4th Generation I I3th * Year Round Service
N.Y.S. DEC CERTIFIED Year VISA/MASTERCARD

518-868-2126 » SLOANSVILLE, NEW YORK

""3*‘3 CONTACT:
) FoxValleyFarms @yahoo.com
FoxVﬁey 518-526-6967

SERVICES PROVIDED:
¢ Large Selection of Materials

+ All Aspects of Excavation
+ Site Development: For Sale: Gravel, Topsoil,

Septic Systems, Driveways, Shale, etc.
Land Clearing, Concrete, Etc. s+ Trucking and Material Delivery

+ Drainage Solutions « Complete Foundation
* Specializing in Ponds Packages

Grantier

Oil Company, Inc.
(518)234-7146
www.grantieroil.com
PROPANE ¢ FUEL OIL

Complete Heating and Cooling
Sales and Service
with 24 hour emergency service

~ Family owned and operated since 1965 ~

.10 OFF per gallon

for paymentin 7 days

GRANTIER

OIL COMPANY, INC.

- Jl

“We specialize in the comfort industry”
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Find out what’s going on by
visiting our Facebook page!

There’s always something new and interesting- contests,
giveaways, events, special offers, interaction with other
My Shopper fans, check it out today.

Find us on

Facebook

facebook.com/myshopperonline




SURROUNDING AREA

Bottle & Can

_._Jnghl’s

We’ll Match Any Competitor’s

1480 St. Rte. 7, Warnerville

4441 St. Rte. 30, Middleburgh
Open in Worcester (next to Jack’s)

518-361-9591
Open 7 Days a Week, 9:00 am - 5:00 pm

Redemption Center

Pricing Within a 25 Mile Radius!

141 MacArthur Ave., Cobleskill ..

Weber

Carpentry

& Home Improvement Corp.

«Kitchens
«Bathrooms
eFinished Basements
«Ceramic Tile

A 7w
o '-I-i.'-.' ; %
- -, \
i g il ?
£ . 77-’ \r‘

Admission: $8.00 (5 & under FREE)
100% of admission goes towards the
care and feeding of our animals.

only
562 Hopkins Crandall Rd. 15 ?:Lnr::
Smyrna, NY «607-627-6784 n Norwic

www.TheWolfMountainNatureCenter.org

tes

h!

*Flooring
*Windows «Doors
«Dry Wall

§ «Storm Doors
A «Garages & Sheds
*Roofing *Decks
«And Much More!

Licensed & Insured
Established 1998

FREE ESTIMATES
All Work Proudly Guaranteed
518-860-2327

e-mail: webcarg8 @gmail.com

Non-profit, outdoor nature center with
focus on advocacy & protection of the wolf.

OPEN MARCH - DECEMBER
Sundays 12:00-4:00 pm

Check our website for extended summer hours
and special programs.

Currently home to Gray
Wolves, Eastern Coyotes,
Gray Foxes & Arctic Foxes.

Tours/information provided
by educated volunteers.
View animals, explore
classroom, shop in gift shop
cabin, nature trails, enjoy
picnic area, ongoing
programs and presentations.
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SURROUNDING AREA

.IENNEY PO'I"I'S

You Dump !&H We Pump 177

Portable Toilet Service

518-361-9591

Serving Schoharie County ¢ 1480 St. Rte. 7, Warnerville

PUMPING SEPTICS

LTE EXCAVATION &
DRAINAGE CORP.

Equipment for Hire -
Excavation, S
Septic Systems,
Concrete Foundations,
Grading, Materials,
Stone Driveways

Office 518.294.4000

Itecorp518@gmail.com

It's a Great Time to Sell- Inventory is Low...

AND WE HAVE BUYERS!

A2 ONE GOOD
= ,,[ 2 THING..

\LRURAL ESTATES

ANOTHER!!!

Committed to Schoharie County for over 37 years!

__{\0/2] Rural Estates

323 Main St. Rte. 7 & 20
Schoharie, NY 12157 Duanesburg, NY 12056
518-295-8547 518-895-2902

www.century21ruralestates.com
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Preparing for an

Emergency
Makes Sense

The likelihood that you and your family will
survive a house fire depends as much on
having a working smoke detector and an exit
strategy, as on a well-trained fire department.
The same is true for surviving a terrorist attack
or other emergency. We must have the tools
and plans in place to make it on our own, at
least for a period of time, no matter where we
are when disaster strikes. Just like having a
working smoke detector, preparing for the
unexpected makes sense. Get ready now.

Get a Kit

of Emergency Supplies

Make a Plan
For What You Will Do in an Emergency

Be Informed
About What Might Happen

Get Involved
in Preparing Your Community

Recommended Supplies to

include in a Basic Kit:

Water - one gallon per person per day for drinking
and sanitation

Food - at least a three-day supply of nonperishable
food

Battery - powered radio & extra batteries
Flashlight & extra batteries

First Aid Kit

Whistle - to signal for help

Filter mask - or cotton T-shirt, to help filter the air
Moist towelettes - for sanitation

Wrench or pliers - to turn off utilities

Manual can opener - for food
(if kit contains canned food)

Plastic sheeting & duct tape - to shelter-in-place

Garbage bags & plastic ties - for personal
sanitation

Unique family needs - such as daily prescription
medications, infant formula or diapers, & important
family documents




PROFESSIONAL LISTINGS

ACCOUNTING

COBLESKILL
Lynette S. B. Lawyer, CPA
2668 State Rte. 7, Cobleskill, NY ......ccccccoeiiiiiiiiiinn 518-254-7320
See display ad.

ATTORNEY
COBLESKILL
Michael J. Shultes
523 West Main St., Cobleskill, NY .....ccooeivniiiniiinnene 518-234-2317
(Around back, Ist floor in Silo at cross roads Barn next to Stewarts)
See display ad.

AUTOMOTIVE

GRAND GORGE
W.S. Hinkley & Sons
Route 30, Grand Gorge, NY ....cccoceviriineninieeneereeeeeee 607-588-7522
See display ad.

MIDDLEBURGH
Ryan’s Auto Repair
2028 State Rte. 145, Middleburgh, NY .....cccccoeeiirciriniinnn 518-827-5367
See display ad.

Warner’s Body Shop

Servicing both foreign and domestic vehicles

2058, Route 145, Middleburgh, NY ....ccccooviviviiniieircviee 518-827-5382
See display ad.

RICHMONDVILLE
WHB Collision
Richmondville, NY ...cccoiiiiiiiiiieieieeeeeeieee et 518-294-0029

SCHOHARIE
Klaus Autowerks
4894 Rte. 30, Schoharie, NY ......cccceeeiriireiiereieieiereseeeienas 518-234-0000
See display ad.

BOOKKEEPING

SCHOHARIE

Evening Star Bookkeeping
Accounting, Bookkeeping, Computerized Payroll
107 Prospect St., Suite 1, Schoharie, NY ........ccccooervenennne. 518-295-8066
See display ad.

CAMPGROUND
COOPERSTOWN
Deer Run Campground
www.deerruncampgroundcooperstown.com
7489 NY 80, Cooperstown, NY .....ccccoveemenenieineniennenenne 607-376-7167
See display ad.

SCHOHARIE
Twin Oaks Campground
camp @twinoaksny.com
142 Twin Oaks Lane, Schoharie, NY .....ccccccooviiiiviiiiiiienen, 518-827-5641
See display ad.

CATERING
High on the Hog
Full Service, On-site Catering of All Things Barbeque
................................................................................................ 518-827-7111
See display ad.

CLEANERS
DELANSON
Brownell EZ Clean LL.C
Aaron Baum owner/operator
brownellsezclean @aol.com
8858 Western Tpke., Delanson, NY .........cccovveinncincnecnnnn. 518-428-2445
See display ad.

COMMUNITY SERVICES
Literacy New York- Fulton, Montgomery & Schoharie
107 Chapel St., Cobleskill, NY .....cccooeviriniieineieieceee 518-234-2576
73 N. Main St., Gloversville, NY .. ..518-725-1440
See display ad.

COBLESKILL
Schoharie County Community Action Program
WWw.sccapine.org
795 East Main St., Suite 5, Cobleskill, NY ......ccccceovneeinnne 518-234-2568
See display ad.

DENTIST

SCHOHARIE
Schoharie Dental, PLLC
General Dentistry for the entire family.
We accept most insurances.
229 Main St., PO Box 129, Schoharie, NY .......ccccccccceeununee. 518-702-4145
See display ad.

DIESEL REPAIR

SHARON SPRINGS
Sharon Hill Garage
We now offer diesel repair on all makes and models of compact tractors
and small engine services.
1506 Hwy. Rte. 20, Sharon Springs, NY .......ccccceivieinieininnnae 518-284-2433
See display ad.

DOG GROOMING

COBLESKILL
Doggy Do’s
Certified & Professional Dog Groomer
118 Aker Drive, Cobleskill, NY........ccooevvieviieiieiieceeeeveeene 518-925-6291
See display ad.

DUMP TRUCK HAULING

SCHOHARIE
Vedder Excavating, LLC
Complete backhoe & bulldozing services. Single and tandem axle
dump trucks. Septic system specialist. New installations & repairs.
Celebrating 50 years in Schoharie County 1974-2024.
Let our experience pay off for you.
444 Terace Mountain Rd., Schoharie, NY ........cccccoevvvvvveennnne 518-295-7318

ENGINEERS

COBLESKILL
Lamont Engineers
Dedicated to service... Committed to excellence
197 Elm St.,, Cobleskill, NY ....cooooieiieirireeereceeceieee 518-234-4028
See display ad.

EXCAVATION

Fox Valley Excavating
foxvalleyexcavating @yah00.COM .......c.ceueueinreeenererenieeineennne 518-526-6967
See display ad.

LTE Excavation & Drainage Corp.
ItecorpS 18 @gmail.COML......ccocueiriiiiiriciiiicic e 518-294-4000
See display ad.

EXCAVATING CONTRACTORS

SCHOHARIE
Vedder Excavating, LLC
Complete backhoe & bulldozing services. Single and tandem axle
dump trucks. Septic system specialist. New installations & repairs.
Celebrating 50 years in Schoharie County 1974-2024.
Let our experience pay off for you.
444 Terace Mountain Rd., Schoharie, NY ........ccccovvivvvrieenns 518-295-7318

FARM & GARDEN

COBLESKILL
Kelley Farm & Garden
239 West Main St., Rte. 7, Cobleskill, NY .......cccccceereinnnne 518-234-2332
See display ad.
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FARM & PET SUPPLIES

COBLESKILL
The Feedbag
117 France Lane, Cobleskill, NY ....ccccooovviiiiiiieiiieeeeiieeeas 518-234-2527
See display ad.

FIREPLACE/CHIMNEY/STOVES
COBLESKILL
Allphase Chimney
Masonry, Fireplaces, Chimneys & Stoves
allphasefires.com
105 Kenyon Rd., Cobleskill, NY .......ccccoeurniiriiiricine 518-234-4919
See display ad.

FIREWOOD

MIDDLEBURGH
Beretz Logging
198 Cliff St., Middleburgh, NY ......cccccoviiiiniiniiiiicieciee 518-827-6464
........................................................................................ Cell: 518-496-8683
See display ad.

FUEL

SCHOHARIE
K&M Fuels, Inc.
645 Schoharie Rd., Schoharie, NY ........cccccoevveviiiiiiiiieiieens 518-227-2093
See display ad.

FUNERAL HOME
Robert A. Guffin Funeral Home
Langan Funeral Home
www.guffinfuneralhome.com, www.langanfuneralhome.com
327 Main St., Schoharie, NY .......ccccoovevieviiinieieeeeeeeeeene 518-295-8175
108 Chapel St., Cobleskill, NY .....cccovviririnniriniirereeene 518-234-2525
See display ad.

GIFTS
CHERRY VALLEY
The Tepee
www.thetepee.biz
7632 Hwy. Rte. 20, Cherry Valley, NY .....ccccoeiiiiviinnnnd 607-264-3987
See display ad.

SCHOHARIE
Schoharie Mercantile
www.schohariemercantile.com
303 Main St., Schoharie, NY .....ccccooeveviriieieiieeeeeeieee e 518-295-6030
See display ad.

GOLF

RICHFIELD SPRINGS
Meadow Links Golf Course
476 County Road 27, Richfield Springs, NY ......cccccveneenenn 315-858-1646
See display ad.

GROCERY STORE / MARKET

MIDDLEBURGH
Valley Market
Rte. 30, Middleburgh, NY .....occocoioimiiireiiecceeeeene 518-827-4402
See display ad.

PRATTSVILLE
Jim’s Great American
49 Main St., Prattsville, NY ......cccooeveieiiriieieccicieeeeeeeeve 518-299-8581
See display ad.

SHARON SPRINGS
Sunny Crest Markets
sunnycrestmarkets.com
7869 NY 10, Sharon Springs, NY
See display ad.
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HAIR SALON

COBLESKILL
Cassandra’s Hair Studio
127 Lark St., Cobleskill, NY ...ccocoovieiiririeieerieieeeieieeeeee 518-527-9662
See display ad.

HOME HEATING
Grantier Oil
grantieroil @ gmail.CoM.........cevvrueueinieieininiecirec e 518-234-7146
See display ad.

ESPERANCE
Esperance LP Gas, Inc.
A locally owned business since 1983. We pride ourselves on meeting the
propane needs of our community while providing excellent service.
Office hours: M-F 9:00 -5:00, 24 Hr. Emergency Service.
www.esperancelpgas.com
10413 Western Turnpike, Delanson, NY .......ccccoceviineneenne. 518-875-9116
See display ad.

HOME HEATING & COOLING

SHARON SPRINGS
R.L. Parsons Inc.
Fuel oil, kerosend, diesel & propane. Furnaces, boilers & central air sales,
duct cleaning, service.
Chestnut St., Sharon Springs, NY ............ 518-284-2421  1-800-686-1626
See display ad.

HOME IMPROVEMENT
Counterfitters LLC
We fabricate custom stone or quartz countertops.
We sell cabinets, sinks, faucets, flooring and more.
counterfittersandmore @ gmail.com
2319 State Hwy. Rte. 20, Carlisle, NY ....cccoovviriieiiiriene. 518-833-2740
See display ad.

Weber Carpentry & Home Improvement Corp.

All work proudly guaranteed, Free Estimates.

webcar98 @ gmail.com
................................................................................................ 518-860-2327

See display ad.

INSURANCE
CENTRAL BRIDGE
Cipperly Agency
agent@cipperlyagency.com
123 Industrial Park Lane, Central Bridge, NY ........cccccceueeee. 518-868-2709
See display ad.

COBLESKILL
Ostrander Insurance Agency
2457 State Route 7, Cobleskill, NY ......cccccceevviinniinnes 518-517-1500
See display ad.

MANUFACTURED HOUSING
RICHFIELD SPRINGS
Better Homes

3787 US Hwy. 20, Richfield Springs, NY
.................................................................................................. 315-858-2100

See display ad.

NATURE CENTER
SMYRNA
Wolf Mountain Nature Center
www.TheWolfMountainNatureCenter.org
562 Hopkins Crandall Rd., Smyrna, NY ..o 607-627-6784
See display ad.

OUTDOOR POWER TOOL REPAIR
SHARON SPRINGS
V. Winnie & Son
Servicing & Repairing all hand held outdoor power tools
947 Engleville Rd., Sharon Springs, NY ......ccccceceonniennnncne 518-225-5167
See display ad.



OUTDOOR RECREATION SPORTING GOODS
NORWICH
Mayhood’s Sporting Goods
Biggest and best selection of Hunting & Fishing needs
in the Central NY area!
Rte. 12 South, Norwich, NY ...ccooooiiiiiiiiiiiieceeeceeeeeeeeieeeand 607-334-2001
See display ad.

PORTABLE TOILETS

WARNERVILLE
Jenney Potts
1480 St. Rte. 7, Warnerville, NY .......ccccoevviiiiiiiciene 518-361-9591
See display ad.

POWER PRODUCTS

ALTAMONT
Turnpike Power Products
174 Western Turnpike, Altamont, NY ......ccccccvennienenenncnes 518-355-8823
See display ad.

PRINTING & PACKAGING

COBLESKILL
Race Printing & Package Center
www.raceprinting.com
111 Barnerville Rd. (next to Pizza Hut), Cobleskill, NY
.................................................................................................. 518-234-4442
See display ad.

PROPERTY CARE

COBLESKILL
Crewell’s Property Care
126 Shad Point Rd., Cobleskill .........ccccooeeinreiirieiiiene 518-231-1223
See display ad.

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
Schoharie County Public Transportation ......................... 518-234-0952
See display ad.

REAL ESTATE
Century 21 Rural Estates
www.century2 lruralestates.com

DUANESDUIZ ...t 518-895-2902
SCHONATIE ..t 518-295-8547
See display ad.

MIDDLEBURGH
Keller Williams- Pearl “Ruby” Torres
341 Main St., PO Box 1101, Middleburgh, NY ............ Cell: 845-461-5132

.................................................................................... Office: 845-481-2700
See display ad.

MOHAWK & SCHOHARIE VALLEY
Donald Dwyer Real Estate Broker
www.landandcabinsales.com
........................................................................................ Cell: 914-907-2738
Office: 914-769-3584

See display ad.

REDEMPTION CENTER
Righi’s Redemption Center
1480 St. Rte 7., Warnerville ¢ 141 MacArthur Ave., Cobleskill
4441 St. Rte. 30, Middleburg * Also open in Worcester (next to Jack’s)
................................................................................................ 518-361-9591
See display ad.

REFRIGERATION
Righi’s Refrigeration
Serving Schoharie COUnty .........c.coccoceeeiviccninincininiceneene 518-361-9591
See display ad.

RESTAURANTS
SCHOHARIE
Paisano’s Pizza Villa
www.paisanospizzavilla.com
285 Main St., Schoharie, NY ... 518-295-7877
See display ad.

SAND & GRAVEL

GILBOA
Platterkill Sand & Gravel
638 Flat Creek Rd., Gilboa, NY .....cccooviiiviiiieieiiiereeenens 607-267-7084
See display ad.

SANITATION
Home Town Hauling
Residential Waste & Recycling ¢ Roll Off Dumpsters
www.hthaulingandrecycling.com .........coccocoveenncinincnnecnnnnd 607-397-4104
See display ad.

SENIOR CITIZENS

COBLESKILL
Schoharie County Council of Senior Citizens
The Gathering Place 50 PLUS Community Center
127 Kenyon Rd., Cobleskill, NY .....ccccccciiiiiiiiciiiiinen 518-823-4338
5506 St. Hwy. 7, Oneonta, NY .....cccccciuiiuiiiniiinecceicieenens 607-267-4732
See display ad.

SHEDS, GARAGES & CABINS
COBLESKILL
Empire Sheds
empireshedsales.com
114 Aker Drive, Cobleskill, NY.......cccoooiiivinininininiiiniiine 518-231-6084
See display ad.

RICHFIELD SPRINGS
Yoder’s Quality Sheds
www.yodersqualitysheds.com
278 Atswell Rd., Richfield Springs, NY ......ccccccevniviinennne. 315-858-0841
See display ad.

SPORTING GOODS

NORWICH
Mayhood’s Sporting Goods
Rte. 12 South, Norwich, NY ...cccooovoiiiiiiiiieeieeeeeeeeeeee e, 607-334-2001
See display ad.

STEEL

SHERBURNE
Steel Sales
Your source for Steel, Stainless, Aluminum & More.
www.steelsalesinc.com
8085 State Hwy. 12, Sherburne, NY ......cccoooviviiiiiniiines 607-674-6363
See display ad.

SURVEYOR

COBLESKILL
Joanne Darcy Crum, LS
479 West Main Street, Cobleskill, NY.......c..ccceevvieeieeiiieennenne 518-234-4650
See display ad.

TOURISM
Visit Schoharie County
.......................................................................... VisitSchoharieCounty.com
See display ad.

TRUCKING & EXCAVATING
Bill’s Trucking & Excavating .............ccccocoovvvinevienneniennnne. 518-827-8154
See display ad.

VISITOR CENTER

NORTH BLENHEIM
Blenheim-Gilboa Visitors Center
Lansing Manor
1378 State Rte. 30, North Blenheim
See display ad.

WATER

SLOANSVILLE
Provost Bros., InC. ...........ccccoooniiiiniiiiieieeeeeee 518-868-2126
See display ad.
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ARKETING
ONCEPTS

wEBSfTE

AWESOME ( Y
6

adern concept

Fresh & m

Specializing in crafting digital experiences that transcend the ordinary and
amplify your brands impact in the online realm

» Website Design
* Graphic Design
* Social Media Management
* Google Business Management & Optimization
* Search Engine Optimization
* Google Display/ Search Ads

pactMarketingConcepts.com * 607-318-1289

Powered by the Pennysaver

PAGE 44 ° 2025 SCHOHARIE VALLEY COMMUNITY DIRECTORY




2> Lamont Engineers

Dedicated to Senvice. . . (Pommitted to Excellence

ALBANY BUSINESS REVIEW

2024 BEST PLACES TO WORK

: 197 Elm Street
~ Cobleskill, New York 12043
| (518) 234-4028

www.lamontengineers.com

Check Us Out For The Best
Selection Of Hunting And Fishing
Needs In The Central NY Area!

+ Lures « Bait - Ammunition Largest
Fi h g I selection
* rishing supplies of long and

- Bows « Archery Supplies hand suns
- Archery Lanes + Crossbows area

Camping Supplies & Accessories

Firearms and Ammunition
Arrive Daily!

%]

00DFS

SPORTING GOODS, INC.

*Live Bait *Licenses  Rte 12 South, Norwich Open Mon.Sat. 9am - 6pm
*Gift Certificates

Always Available 607-334-2001 = www.mayhoodssportinggoods.com
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-y cumitue: ,produce - Croceries - Pretzels  Delj, Creenhgs
»w

b e .—, gakery’ ,Butcher Gifts  Sheds & Play Sets ANp MORE:
—

A
SUNNYCREST

o MARKETS
Explore Family Friendly

Locally Produced Experience an authentic Amish marketplace. where unique merchants

Sun ngcre st P e Cl  Provide a warm. welcoming shopping experience. With resh. local goods

Fine Crattsmanship that will keep you coming back for more. if's a visit you won' forget

M arketS| Artisan Products 7869 NY-10, Sharon Springs, NY 13459

(518) 284-2256 | sunnycrestmarkets.com

Home Town Hauling
— & Recycling

A Local Full Service Refuse Company

Residential Waste & Recycling Service * Roll Off Dumpsters
Serving Otsego & Schoharie Counties

607-397-4104

www.hthaulingandrecycling.com

Call us
for all your roll
off needs!
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EVERYTHING YOU NEED FOR COUNTRY LIVING!

*Lumber & Building Supplies *Electrical & Plumbing Needs
*Interior / Exterior Paint *Brand Name Footwear

*Plants, Shrubs & Trees eLawn Fertilizer & Gardening Supplies
eCarhartt and Ariat Clothing *Hardware & Tools

*Stihl Chainsaws & Service eJust Ask Rental Equipment

*Honda Generators, Snowblowers & Mowers *Do It Yourself Projects & Assistance

*Bulk or Bagged Soils & Mulch
*Farm Feed & Supplies, Shavings

*Beekeeping & Maple Tapping Supplies

BEHIND EVERY PROJECTISA

Jruelalue
Just Ask.

RENTAL

/\ Ke[[ey Farm & Garden

Where customers are treated like part of our family tree

*Glass & Screen Repairs

Joe Beretz, Jr. ¢ (518) 827-6464 Cell: (518) 496-8636

ERETY
LOGGING

Custom Saw Lumber up to 24 ft.

Locust Ash & Black Walnut Trees Wanted
Standing Timber Wanted ¢ Firewood & Stump Grinding
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Ve Deliver!

Minimums apply
based on distance

. SCHOHARIE
' VALLEY WINE '
¢ & LIQUOR

Always The Finest
PIZZA & ITALIAN
DISHES ANYWHERE!

e Pizza - all sizes & varieties
e Calzones ¢ Stromboli
e Wings ¢ Subs

e Hot Sandwiches
\ ¢ Dinners

285 Main Street
Schoharie, NY 12157

(518) 295-7877 |

Full menu avadilable at
www.pdaisanospizzavilla.com

OPEN 7 Days A Week

Mon.-Sat. 11 am to 9 pm;
Sun. Noon to 9 pm

& 285 Main St., Schoharie
“ 518-295-8885
P S CHOMARIE VALLEYT:
WINE & LIQUOR I
10% OFF |
3 Bottles of Wine

With this coupon. I4

|
|
|
sl
- z I Coupon expires 5/29/25 I‘
|
L

%

r-----------

s Coupon expires
1°3.00 OFF ==
u A One coupon per
N customer per visit, -
I y Coupons cannotbe R
24-Cut Pizza  combined

| . N BN BN B B BN B B B | v
with $30 Purchase

Sl o P el Sl —md gl el gl el el el P N T Y
¥ i a1 ot a4 T i e g e e e i e W M N Ll
B T T o o e i T T o o T - T o e o e e T o o o o T o o

gfgi?ggg 2ger o One coupon per customer
u . -
per Visit.
customer per visif, Coupons cannot be I
Order Of Coupons cannot be ﬁ o F combined. :
Garlic Knots combined. oy O S B . J‘;
I I I I D B B B B S J e i i e e

L Y G Y Y e e e e Y W Y e e e e
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